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CHAIRMAN REVIEW

Citi Pharma Limited became a leading pharmaceutical company specialized in APl and some of Formulation
products in Pakistan. We currently hold 1st place in terms of total revenue value in the Pakistan APl market, with
the aim to become ranked first in Asian and African Market in the very near future.

To reach the current and future goal, we follow a three-pronged approach pivoted on our core values:

First, we pursue “excellence in quality”. We integrate quality into every process in the company, both through
continuously seeking international standards, certification and through implanting quality as part of the
company culture. This introduces levels of optimization and efficiency that cannot be achieved through
traditional means.

Second, Citi’s mission is guided by “Improving peoples ’lives” as the heart of its success.

This can be seen in the company’s continuous interest in employee improvement and advancement. But,
perhaps, more importantly, a sense of corporate and social responsibility is integral to company culture.

Third, the company considers “Customer Focus, Innovation & Creativity, Integrity & Transparency,” to be part
of its values. This is translated into openness, transparency, and accountability at all levels and in all stages in
the production process. It is also reflected in the R&D pipeline which is designed to keep up with the demands
of the market as well as patient Well-being.

One of our main strategies for the coming period is a focus on export markets. This area is currently seeing huge
growth with multiple new markets being opened every year. This stage offers both significant challenges as well
as unprecedented opportunities and is already proving to be a major engine of company growth.

Nadeem Amjad




CEO MESSAGE

Citi Pharma Limited is one of the largest and most recognized pharmaceutical company in Pakistan that
manufactures, markets and distributes API’s and some generics for human health. Since its incorporation, Citi
Pharma strategy has been focused on creating a strong pharmaceutical industry that provides quality medicines
to patients and the communities in which it serves.

Our vision of becoming a International Company with international Standards drives our long and sustainable
business and is essential in the way we determine our approach. We invest patiently in our assets while
exercising a long-term strategy, we improve the quality and the value of our assets by partnering with
multinational companies and we enhance productivity by partnering with professional management teams,
skillful labor and high end technology in order to help us reach our full potential. Once we commit to a strategic
objective, we stick with it across all levels and functions in order to deliver on our promise.

We are convinced that our investors, partners and employees depend on us to protect their investments and
deliver the level of returns needed to meet their financial obligations. By exercising a culture that strives to avoid
undue risk, we are able to protect capital and increase shareholders ’value. Our Management Team also
understands that our high standards of integrity places great value on doing the right things and on doing things
right. We are proud that our efforts to build a great Company have been recognized locally, regionally and
internationally by our competitors and our peers.

Our investment in the upgrade of our manufacturing facilities with the addition of a new top of the line sterile
area is a prime example of our commitment to a long-time strategy. During a difficult time of political and
economic instability, we continued to support a highly skillful labor force, a team of highly trained professionals
and a great management team in achieving our operating synergies and in growing our business regionally, while
taking a futuristic viewpoint to further fortify our investment in order to increase our equity value.

We thank our investors and partners for their confidence in our Company, and we thank our employees for

committing their talent and expertise to our success. We look forward to reporting continued strong
performance going forward.

Rizwan Ahmad




Vision Statement

We aim to be among the top pharmaceutical companies in Pakistan by constantly evolving and bringing home
innovative products in healthcare segment.

Mission Statement

Citi Pharma’s mission is to dedicate itself exceptional value through creation of innovative & cost-effective
pharma products and develop a corporate culture that rewards initiative, enthusiasm and ethical practices.

Core Values

Core values of the Company are as follows:

Respect and Integrity
Passion

Ownership

Work-life Balance
Excellence
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Director’s Profile

1- Mr. Nadeem Amjad (Chairman)

Mr. Amjad is also an early age entrepreneur with over 3 decades of profession business experience.
Early on in his career, he has remained involved with trading businesses, dealing in Jewelry, Computer
Micro-chips & Hardware, Telecommunications business.

He is a well-organized entrepreneur with an impeccable reputation of successful business ventures
across the far east, middle east and Pakistan. He was the person behind the growth of the family
businesses into various fields as well as geographies. He expanded the family business into the Hong
Kong Real Estate business as well as hospitality.

He holds an MBA from University of London.

2- Mr. Rizwan Ahmad (CEO)

Mr. Rizwan Sheikh is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is widely recognized as one of the
leading thought leaders, entrepreneurs and Chief Executives in Pakistan’s pharma sector.

Mr. Sheikh entered into the world of business at an early age, when he joined the family
telecommunications business under the name of Citi Phones (Pvt.) Limited. He gained considerable
success as he graduated the business from a retailer to an importer. Later on, he joined the family
business in Hong Kong and ventured into telecommunications, real estate, hospitality (restaurants) and
pharma (API) trading. In 2007, Mr. Sheikh established a mobile phone manufacturing plant in Chinese
province of Shenzhen and set up a trading company, “Discover Wireless” in Dubai, UAE. Since 2012, he
has been spearheading CPL successfully, transforming the Company from a loss-making entity to a
profitable one.

Mr. Rizwan holds an LLB (Bachelors of Law) from University of Punjab. After completing his bachelors,
he studied law further from the University Law College.

Until recently, he was a Member Board of Management, Pakistan Drugs Testing and Research Center
(a Government of Punjab undertaking), which is an independent contract research organization
carrying out drugs’ testing and bioavailability/bioequivalence (BA/BE) studies and providing clinical,
analytical and bio analytical chemistry services. He was also a member of the Expert Panel (Ministry of

Health, Pakistan) for inspection of bioequivalence centers.




3- Mr. Abdul Jaleel Sheikh (Independent Director)

Mr. Jaleel is serving as Group Head Operations of Pak Brunei Investment Company and also holds
nominee directorship in Nimir Industrial Chemicals Limited and Haqg Bahu Sugar Mills Limited. Mr.
Shaikh brings with him more than thirty years of diversified experience in Project Management & Civil
Engineering, Corporate Finance, Credit Administration, Human Resource Management and General
Administration. Mr. Shaikh worked as an engineer for ten years in Saudi Arabia before joining Saudi
Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Company in Islamabad. He remained with the Company for
twenty years and was a key member of the senior management team involved in all strategic business
decisions. He represented SAPICO on the boards of various manufacturing and service sector
companies. Amongst other, these included Saudi Pak Commercial Bank, Saudi Pak Insurance Company,

Fecto Cement Co. Ltd. and Japan Power Generation Co. Ltd.

4- Ms. Farzin Khan (Independent Director)

Ms. Farzin is presently serving as National Programme Manager — Anti Corruption/AML/CFT at United
Nations Office on Drugs & Crime (UNODC) Pakistan. Previously, she has served as Deputy Chief of
Project for USAID’s Financial Market Development (FMD) Project. In her recent roles with leading
donors in the development sector, she has handled extensive support portfolios at national level for
various regulatory and financial institutions and gained extensive experience of Financial Oversight &
Regulation, Compliance & Corporate Governance, Stakeholder Communications & Advocacy, Project
Management & AML/CFT Compliance mechanisms.

Ms. Farzin has twelve years of local and regional experience across legal & regulatory enforcement
agencies, regional governmental bodies and donor sectors. She has served for ten years as the Deputy
Secretary General of the South Asian Federation of Exchanges (SAFE)-an industry association
comprising of 24 securities market institutions from South Asia as well as from Mauritius and UAE. In
her earlier assignments, Ms. Farzin worked in a number of national level regulatory institutions such as
the Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) as well as the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SECP).

In recent years Ms. Farzin has worked on a number of corporate governance assignments and
successfully graduated as a Certified Director from the Lahore University of Management Sciences
(LUMS) as per SECP approved program. She speaks regularly at seminars and events at regional and

national level on her areas of expertise as well as growing role of Women in financial world.




Ms. Farzin has an extensive educational and training background. She holds an MBA in Finance as well
as a Masters in Financial Management from the University of Bedfordshire Business School, United
Kingdom, besides having attended many other career development programs, seminars and
conferences. She also has the distinction of being an IVLP Scholar under the United States funded
Program on Financial Reforms. Alongside her professional accomplishments, she is happily married for
sixteen years and has a thirteen years old son. In her own words, she greatly values wok life balance
and promotes organizational commitment for promoting gender equality and an enabling rather

encouraging environment for female professionals.

5- Mrs. Saira Aslam (Non-Executive Director)
Mrs. Saira Aslam is an Bsc from Lahore Garrison College and is associated with CPL as a Director. She
actively participates in the philanthropy in the city of Lahore and is considered to be one of the active

philanthropists in the city.

6- Dr. Zameer Ul Hassan Shah (Director)

Dr. Shah is an experienced pharmaceutical sector professional with over 2 decades of experience in
leading local and MNC companies. He is currently working as Director Operations of CPLand is in charge
of all production related matters. Prior to joining CPL in 2002, Dr. Shah was involved with leading
pharma sector players such as Global Pharmaceuticals (Pvt.) Limited, Caraway Pharmaceuticals, Cirin
Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Limited, Merck Marker in Pakistan. He has also worked internationally with Tabuk
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company — Riyadh, Saudi Arabia and Shifa Jeddah Polyclinics.
Throughout his career, he has been involved with the production of various penicillin, cephalosporin
and psychotropic medicines.

He has completed his Master of Philosophy in Pharmaceutics from Gomal University (D.l. Khan). During
his M. Phil, his thesis was on Bioequivalence Study of 400mg dispersible tablets (deferasirox) in
comparison to Asurna 400 mg dispersible tablets by a leading MNC.

Following his M. Phil, he obtained a PhD in Pharmaceutics from Sargodha University.

7- Muhammad Naeem (Director)
He has more than 25 years of experience in retail sector, covering mostly electronic items and mobile

phones. He serves as the Director of Citi Pharma Limited.




PROFILES OF KEY MANAGEMENT

1- Mr. Asif Igbal (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Igbal is the Chief Financial Officer at CPL. He holds extensive experience in both audit and finance.
He specializes in the areas of corporate tax, audit and assurance and has previously been associated in

various finance related roles, including:

J Senior Manager (Bilal Fibers Limited)
o Manager (Aslam Malik & Co)
. Manager Accounts & Tax (Jade Group)

He is a member of Pakistan Institute of Public Finance Accountant and has cleared his CA Inter from

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

2- Mr. Muhammad Riaz (Company Secretary)

Mr. Riazis an MBA & LLB by qualification. He holds approx. 15 years of professional experience covering
multifaceted concerns ranging from both the Public and the Private sectors of the economy. Areas of
his professional experience & expertise include Direct & Indirect taxes, Corporate and Legal Services.

Positions previously held include:

J Senior Manager Corporate Affairs (Systems Limited)
o Assistant Manager Corporate & Tax (KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co)
J Corporate & Tax Executive (The TAQ Organization)

3- Mr. SYED KHALID AFTAB (Director of Quality Operations)

An experienced person holding a Ph. D with expertise in Synthesis of API’s and Formulation Products,
IMP/Commercial GMP (EU), Clinical Trial Manufacturing, Sterile Manufacturing, Quality Management
System and General Pharmaceutical Products Manufacturing regulated by MHRA and FDA, Regulatory
Affairs, successfully went through the Audit conducted by DRAP, E&Y Pakistan. Plant Management,
Business Development, Quality Control / Assurance, Equipment Qualifications, Manufacturing Process
Validation, ATM Validation / Verifications, NGI (Next Generation Impactor), Stability Studies,
supporting stakeholders in their use of competitive and scientific resources and leads internal projects
that may impact the global business are the performing areas with responsibilities & enthusiasm.

Hands on experience in chemical synthesis and purification, operating different instruments including




LC-MS, UV-Vis Spectrophotometer, FTIR, Thermal Analyzer (TGA, DTA, DSC) NMR, HPLC, TLC, CH & N
Analyzer etc.

Executive with team orientated supportive proactive leadership style. Fast learner who is comfortable
working with senior management. Skilled at summarizing complex issues into focused action plans for
internal and external customers. Strong customer focus with an ability to apply people and technical

skills in achieving business goals and creating win-win situations.

4- Muhammad Javed Rafique
Mr. Javed Rafique is an MBA Marketing (VU Lahore). He has the vast experience of serving the
corporate sector which includes the following.

e Morgan Technologies Karachi Feb. 2008 to Oct 2009 (Area Sales Manager Central & North)

e Causeway International Karachi Sep. 2009 to Dec. 2018(Regional Sales Manager Central & North)
e (Citi Pharma Pvt Limited Lahore Jan. 2019 to till Dated (Head of Sales and Marketing All Pakistan)
e Having experience of International Marketing as Sales Manager in Holland 2007.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors of Citi Pharma Limited is please to present the Annual Report along with

Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.

This Director’s report has been prepared in accordance with section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017
and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 and will be submitted to the

members at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on October 28, 2021.

OPERATING RESULTS Rupees in million
Profit before Taxation 499,746,398
Taxation (147,978,103)
Profit after Taxation 351,768,295
Other comprehensive income - net of tax 530,085
Revenue Reserves brought forward 528,308,204
Reserves available for appropriations 880,606,584

Appropriations:

- Bonus Shares 2021 @ 200% of the shares  (500,000,000)
Revenue Reserves carried forward 380,606,584

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Net sales increased by 64% from previous year. Gross Profit margin improved from 32% to 79% because
of increase in sales prices and Dollar variation. Admin and Sales & Marketing expenses increased by
17% and 12% respectively, other expenses increased by 133% as compared to previous year mainly
duetoincrease in Workers’ Profit Participation Fund (WPPF), Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWEF). As a result
of these factors, profit after tax for the year increased by Rs. 208.351 million over the previous year.
Earnings per share was Rs. 4.64 per share (2020: Rs. 31.87 per share), the difference in earning per
share Rs. 27.23 per share is mainly because of Split of share price from Rs. 100 to Rs. 10 and issuance

of 200% Bonus shares.




OVERVIEW OF ECONOMY AND BUSINESS

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered human
lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. On March 23, 2020, the Government of the
Punjab announced a temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the COVID-19. The
company's operations were not affected as it fell under the exemption provided by the Government of
Punjab. After implementing all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety
of employees, the company continued to carry out its operations and has taken all necessary steps to
ensure smooth and adequate continuation of its business. Due to this, management has assessed the
accounting implications of these developments on these financial statements, however, according to
management's assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of COVID-19 on

these financial statements.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Citi Pharma Limited has an independent and objective Board. The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive are different and each has a clearly defined role profile. In addition, both the Audit and
HR committees are chaired by independent directors. There are 7 Board members including one female

and 6 male directors, whereas current composition of the Board is as follows;

Category Names

Independent Directors Abdul Jaleel Shaikh
Farzin Khan

Rizwan Ahmad

Zameer Ul Hassan Shah
Nadeem Amjad
Muhammad Naeem
Saira Aslam

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

PRI EIDN e

Female Director (Non-Executive)




COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

a. Audit Committee
Audit committee comprises of three members from the Board. The chairman of the Board is an

independent director as required in the CCG Regulations 2019 while the two are non-executive
directors. The Board of Directors has set out terms of reference for the audit committee. The audit
committee reviews the annual and quarterly financial statements, internal audit reports and holds its

meeting prior to the Board meetings. The following are the members of the audit committee.

‘ Name Designation

Abdul Jaleel Shaikh Chairman/Independent Director

Nadeem Amjad Non-Executive Director

Muhammad Naeem Non-Executive Director

Muhammad Riaz Secretary to Audit Committee

b. Human Resource & Remuneration committee
The committee consists of three members from the Board; one is independent director and two are

executive director. The Chairman of the committee is the independent director. The committee
reviews and formulates the HR & management policies of the company. The Committee is also
responsible for the remuneration of employees and ensures that it is aligned with the Company’s
business strategy and long-term interests. The following are the members of the Human Resource

committee:

Name Designation

Farzin Khan Chairman/Independent Director

Rizwan Ahmad Executive Director

Zameer Ul Hassan Shah Executive Director

Muhammad Riaz Secretary to HR & Remuneration
Committee




DIRECTOR’S TRAINING PROGRAM

Out of seven Directors of the Company, two directors have completed the training under the
Director’s Training Program and the company has planned to conduct the director’s training program
of remaining directors in upcoming financial year.

All Directors are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as Directors of corporate
bodies.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL AND FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has established effective internal financial controls across all functions. The independent
Internal Audit function of your Company regularly monitors the implementation of financial controls,
and the Audit Committee reviews it.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

e We are pleased to report that the Company has taken necessary steps to comply with the provisions of
the Code of Corporate Governance as a result of its listing at the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

e The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, represent fairly its state of
affairs, the result of the operations, cash flows, and changes in equity.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

e Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

e Financial reporting is based on the approved International Accounting Standards as applicable in
Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has
been adequately disclosed and explained.

e There is no significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e Thesystem of internal control is sound in design. The system is being continuously monitored by Internal
Audit and through other such monitoring procedures. The process of monitoring internal controls will
continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring
improvements in the system.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Operating and financial data of the company for the last six years is annexed.

MATERIAL CHANGES
There have been no material changes and the company has not consciously entered into any

commitment that will affect its financial position.




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding is annexed with the report in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 as at

June 30, 2021.

AUDITORS

The present Auditors M/s Aslam Malik & Co, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses the recommendation of the
Audit Committee for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year ending
June 30, 2022.

RISK OF MANAGEMENT

As part of its responsibilities, the Board of Directors have always kept a close watch on socio-economic
environment and consequential internal and external risks that might impact the safe and smooth
operations of the Company and remained vigilant in identifying and mitigating risks throughout the
year: The Board identified potential risks, assessed their impact on the Company and formulated
strategies to mitigate any and all foreseeable risks to the business. These strategies will be enforced

through Audit Committee to ensure that no gaps remained in risk mitigation.

RISK ASSESSMENT

Business face numerous uncertainties that might pose threats to its objectives and if not addressed
may cause preventable losses. The Board has carried out vigilant and thorough assessment of both
internal and external risks that the company might face. Rising cost of raw material is the most

imminent risk facing the company. Devaluation of PKR has made the risk exposure to an extent.

DIVIDEND
Taking into consideration the current capital and equity investments, the board has recommended the
final cash dividend of PKR 1.50 per share along with 10% bonus shares subject to the approval of

shareholders in the upcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on October 28, 2021.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has made significant contributions to the welfare of the Society by providing basic

education, health, self-care and other social activities




ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company maintains the safe and secure environment and consider it our duty to ensure that
people who work for us know how to work safely and without any risks to their health. The health and
safety of our employees and visitors is a high priority for the Company. Therefore, appropriate hazards
associated with operations are continuously identified, assessed and managed to eliminate or reduce
risks.

FUTURE PROSPECTS/CAPACITY EXPANSION

The following expansion is underway:

API segment: In the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, demand for Paracetamol witnessed a surge.
Moreover, health awareness and health spending has also risen. Hence, CPL intends to expand their
existing capacity of 3,600 tons per annum of Paracetamol to 6,000 tons per annum. Further to this, CPL
plans to add new APIs to its existing product line, i.e. (i) Ascorbic Acid, (ii) Chloroquine Phosphate, and
(iii) Hydroxychloroquine Sulfate; subsequently, these will

also add formulation products of the same to the Company’s portfolio.

Particulars Capacity (Tons) p.a
Ascorbic Acid 1200
Chloroquine Phosphate 50

Hydroxychloroquine
50
Sulfate

In the Formulation Segment, the Company intends to build three manufacturing facilities taking total
capacity to 200,000 vials/injectables35 per day, dry powder/suspension 60,000 bottles per day,
capsules 4,200,000 per day, and tablets 4,500,000 per day. These include dedicated lines for (i)

Penicillin 36, (ii) Cephalosporin and (iii) Psychotropic & Narcotics drugs37.
As per guidelines of DRAP, in APl manufacturing a separate dedicated line is required to eliminate any

chances of cross contamination. CPL’s in-house engineering team shall be responsible for civil, electrical

and mechanical work for both APl and formulation. Further, they will also be responsible for

procurement and installation of machinery for both the API.
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CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility)

We maintain participative relationship with the society and being a pharma company, continuously
invest in the interventions related to health. In addition to our communities, we ensure the well-being
and safety of all the stakeholders in our value chain through continuous engagement with relevant
stakeholders to uphold the best practices in social responsibility. Giving away our share of kindness is
not a part of a larger social responsibility that the society itself has entrusted upon us.

We conduct different health awareness programs.

Awareness Campaign

Most Woapon Against H patitis
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Company Key Products

API segment

Paracetamol, also known as acetaminophen, is a medication used to treat pain and fever.
Paracetamol was first developed in 1877 and is the most commonly used medication for pain and fever across
the world. It is on the World Health Organization's List of Essential Medicines. Paracetamol is available as a
generic medication, with brand names including Tylenol and Panadol among others.

PARACETAMOL PRODUCTION

PARACETAMOL

. EACILITY
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Penicillin/Amoxicillin is an antibiotic used to treat a number of bacterial infections. These include middle
ear infection, strep throat, pneumonia, skin infections, and urinary tract infections, among others. It is
taken orally, or less commonly by injection. Amoxicillin was discovered in 1958 and came into medical
use in 1972. It is on the World Health Organization's List of Essential Medicines. It is one of the most

commonly prescribed antibiotics in children. Amoxicillin is available as a generic medication.

AMOXICILLIN PRODUCTION

2018

PENCILLIN
FACILITY.




Levofloxacin is used to treat a variety of bacterial infections. This medication belongs to a class of
drugs known as quinolone antibiotics. It works by stopping the bacterial growth and is used to treat bacterial
infections. It will not work for viral infections (such as common cold, flu). Levofloxacin was first approved by the
FDA in 1996, and was approved in Canada and several South American countries soon after.

Cefixime/Cephalosporin, is an antibiotic medication used to treat a number of bacterial infections.

Cefixime was patented in 1979 and approved for medical use in the United States in 1989. It is on the World
Health Organization's List of Essential Medicines. It is available as a generic medication.

CEFIXIME PRODUCTION

| Wiz whEmini A8 e |

2019

CEFIXIME _
FACILITY




Ciprofloxacin is an antibiotic used to treat a number of bacterial infections. This includes bone
and joint infections, intra-abdominal infections, certain type of infectious diarrhea, respiratory tract
infections, skin infections, typhoid fever, and urinary tract infections, among others. Ciprofloxacin was
patented in 1980 and introduced in 1987. It is on the World Health Organization's List of Essential
Medicines and is classified as critically important for human medicine. It is available as a generic

medication.

CIPROFLOXACIN PRODUCTION

2077 2018 2019 2020

CIPROFLOXACIN
| FACILITY.




Cephradine is in a group of drugs called cephalosporin antibiotics. Cephradine fights bacteria in the
body. Cephradine is used to treat infections caused by bacteria, including upper respiratory
infections, ear infections, skin infections, and urinary tract infections.
Norfloxacin hydrochloride is a synthetic chemotherapeutic antibacterial agent occasionally used to
treat common as well as complicated urinary tract infections. Norfloxacin is a broad-spectrum
antibiotic that is active against both Gram-positive and Gram-negative bacteria. It functions by
inhibiting DNA gyrase, a type |l topoisomerase, and topoisomerase IV, enzymes necessary to separate
bacterial DNA, thereby inhibiting cell division.
Aspirin is used to reduce fever and relieve mild to moderate pain from conditions such as muscle
aches, toothaches, common cold, and headaches. It may also be used to reduce pain and swelling
in conditions such as arthritis. Aspirin is known as a salicylate and a nonsteroidal anti-inflammatory
drug (NSAID). It works by blocking a certain natural substance in your body to reduce pain and
swelling. This effect reduces the risk of stroke and heart attack.

Ibuprofen is a nonsteroidal, anti-inflammatory drug (NSAID) class that is used for treating pain,
fever, and inflammation.  Ibuprofen was discovered in 1961 by Stewart Adams at Boots UK Limited
and initially marketed as Brufen. It is available under a number of trade names, including Nurofen, Advil
and Motrin. It was first marketed in 1969 in the United Kingdom and in the United States in 1974. It is
on the World Health Organization's List of Essential Medicines. It is available as a generic medication.




Formulation Segment

S.no  Product Name Generic Name Product Category
Paracetamol, Dextromethorphan HBr, Chlorphenermine
1 Askprol C Tab Capsule Tablets
Maleate, Vitamin C, Pseudo Ephedrine Hcl.
Tablets and
2 Askprol Paracetamol
Suspension
Aminophyllin, Diphenlydramine Hcl Powder, Ammonium
3 Asovil Suspension
Chloride, Menthol
Capsule and
4 Cefask Cefixime
Suspension
5 Cingol Montelukast Tablets
6 Clopeg Clopidogrel Tablets
7 Diaglim Glimepiride Tablets
8 Duotec Ranitidine as Hcl Tablets
9 Floxcip Ciprofloxacin-Hcl Tablets
10 | Fluirp Flurbiprofen Tablets
11 | Lenon Levofloxacin (as Hemihydrate) Tablets
12 | Modopine Amlodipine Tablets
13 | Nimcox Nimesulide Tablets
Tablets and
14 | Ponfab Mefenamic Acid
Suspension
15 | Promy Omeprazole Capsule
16 | Qunor Norfloxacin Tablets
17 Recoz Simvastatin Tablets







Demand for the products

API segment
Historically, the growth rate in APl segment has remained impressive. CPL deals in 9 primary APIs,

including Paracetamol, Ciprofloxacin, Cefixime (Cephalosporin), and Amoxicillin (Penicillin). Consistent
growth is achieved across the board in all segments mainly due to population growth, availability of
health care facilities to the masses, awareness and increasing trend of prescription of generic salts from
the practitioners. CPL has developed its expertise in research and development to develop more
molecules within its production facilities. Recent COVID-19 pandemic has also triggered sales growth
in Paracetamol and Ciprofloxacin categories. However, margins in this segment are relatively low.
Higher sales volume requires more working capital in this category, being a B2B segment where larger
formulations’ producers take longer credit terms.

The demand for APl segment is also derived from growth in the formulation segment, which is

dependent upon various factors such as healthcare awareness, introduction of new products, etc.

Formulation segment

CPL intends to expand its presence in the formulation segment and is aggressively working towards
development of its own brands in various widely used prescriptions. The margins in this segment are
relatively higher but being a new segment, sales volumes are expected to grow gradually by
establishing an extensive distribution channel across Pakistan. Moreover, CPL product line will include
injectables, capsules, syrups etc. This will be a B2C segment and demand of this segment is related to
population increase, availability of health care facilities to the masses, awareness and many other

factors, as already outlined above.




Hospital Facility

Lahore is the 2" largest city of Pakistan with a population of ~13.1 million as quoted by world
population review!. Presently, Lahore is facing a shortage of quality healthcare facilities. Main
Boulevard Gulberg, Lahore has only one small hospital that is not sufficient to cater to the needs of its
existing population. Keeping this demand in mind, CPL has acquired a 4-Kanal plot which is ideally
located on Hali Road, right opposite to ChenOne, 100 yards from Hafeez Centre and PACE Shopping
Mall, easily accessible from the Canal Road and Liberty Market. CPL intends to set up a state of the art

50 bed hospital facility at this location to cater to the demands of a highly densely populated city.

Future prospects, demand outlook

CPLis one of the leading APl manufacturing companies in Pakistan. The Company’s Management is apt
at adopting and utilizing new technology and committed to adherence to Good Manufacturing
Practices (GMP). The Company is continuously striving to acquire the latest technological
advancements as the Management realizes the importance of technology. This provides the Company
with a key advantage that they are not only compliant with GMP standards but also have the latest
production technology available.

With a historical 4 year compounded annual growth rate of around 36.5% per annum in sales value,
the growth has remained impressive. Keeping this in mind, the Company is planning further growth in
the APl segment as an inherent demand for local API product exists. Any additions to APl (whether in
terms of new compounds or increase in the capacity of the existing product portfolio) will serve as
Import substitution and be given preference by the local formulations’ players due to savings on

custom duty and exchange rate parity, subject to quality check. The Company is planning to:

1. Increase production capacity in both APl segment as well as Formulations (adding more products
to the APl i.e (i) Ascorbic Acid, (ii) Chloroquine Phosphate, and (iii) Hydroxyl Chloroquine Sulfate and
subsequent formulation of these APIs.

2. Company plans to add (i) Cephalosporin and (ii) Psychotropic and Narcotics to its formulation

portfolio and to expand its existing production capacity for Penicillin

3. Set up a hospital facility in Lahore (as part of vertical diversification)




Approvals & Certifications

Certificates/

Authority

Date of

Products

Validity

Approval

Registration/Inspection*

Drug Drug Regulatory .
Manufacturing Authority of 27-Feb-13 API - Paracetamol Applied for
. . Renewal*
License Pakistan
Drug Drug Regulatory .
Applied f
Manufacturing Authority of 27-Feb-13 API - Aspirin Pphe (ir
. . Renewal
License Pakistan
Drug Drug Regulatory . .
API - | Applied f
Manufacturing Authority of 27-Feb-13 . Quino (?ne ppile (ir
. i (Ciprofloxacin) Renewal
License Pakistan
Drug Drug Regulatory
Manufacturing Authority of 24-Jul-18 API - Cephradine 3 Years from. date
. . of Inspection
License Pakistan
Manufacturin Drug Regulatory 5 Years from date
. 8 Authority of 24-Jul-18 Formulation .
License . of Inspection
Pakistan
Drug Drug Regulatory
3Y f dat
Manufacturing Authority of 24-Jul-18 API - Cephalexin ears rom. ate
. . of Inspection
License Pakistan
Drug Drug Regulatory
3Y f dat
Manufacturing Authority of 24-Jul-18 API - Cefixime ears rom. ate
. . of Inspection
License Pakistan
Certificate of Drug Reaulator
Goods & g. Y Tablets, Capsules and | 3 Years from date
. Authority of 13-Jun-19 .. .
Manufacturing . Oral Liquid of Inspection
. Pakistan
Practice
Drug Drug Regulatory
Manufacturing Authority of 22-Dec-20 API - Ascorbic Acid 3 Years fronq date
. . of Inspection
License Pakistan
Drug . Drug Reg.ulatory API - Chloroquine 3 Years from date
Manufacturing Authority of 22-Dec-20 .
. . Phosphate of Inspection
License Pakistan
Drug . Drug Reg.ulatory AP1- . 3 Years from date
Manufacturing Authority of 22-Dec-20 Hydroxychloroquine .
. . of Inspection
License Pakistan Sulphate
Drug Drug Regulatory
Manufacturing Authority of 22-Dec-20 API - Azithromycin 3 Years from. date
. . of Inspection
License Pakistan
Drug . Drug Reg.ulatory API - Penicillin 2 Years from Date
Manufacturing Authority of 6-Jan-21 N .
. ] Derivatives of Inspection
License Pakistan




Drug

Drug Regulatory

API - Cephalosporin’s

2 Years from Date

Manufacturing Authority of 6-Jan-21 L .
. . Derivatives of Inspection
License Pakistan
General Products
(Paracetamol,
Drug Drug Regulatory L
Manufacturing Authority of 6-Jan-21 lbuprofen, As.plrm, 2 Years from. Date
. . Norfloxacin, of Inspection
License Pakistan . .
Ciprofloxacin,
Levofloxacin, ETC)
International
IS0 9001:2015 Organization for 10-Nov-20 APl and Formulation Yearly Renewal
Standardization
International
ISO 45001:2018 Organization for 10-Nov-20 APl and Formulation Yearly Renewal
Standardization
International
ISO 14001:2015 Organization for 10-Nov-20 APl and Formulation Yearly Renewal

Standardization

. Date of Registration is the same as Date of Inspection




Associated Companies
The Company has eight Associates by virtue of common shareholding/Investment.

Yageen Developers Limited

Yageen Developers Limited (YDL) was incorporated on December 09, 2016 as a private limited
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The main objects of the Company is to
carry on the business of development, construction of apartments, offices, shops, housing schemes,
commercial plaza and any other kind of real estate activities. The registered office of the Company
is 588-Q block, Johar Town, Lahore. YDL was converted into public limited company in December
2020. YDL has acquired 1,406 Kanal of land in the Fateh Jan, near Islamabad Airport and is working
on the “Mayfair Mangial Islamabad Project”.

Details Regarding Associated Companies

A list of associated companies by virtue of common directorship is given below:

Nature of Cumulative Nature of
Name of Directors

relation Shares Held Business

Mr. Nadeem Amjad
Associated by
Yageen Developers Mr. Rizwan Ahmad Real Estate
Common 76%
Limited Mr. Muhammad Developer
Directorship
Naeem

Associated by
Wisdom Works (Pvt.) Mr. Nadeem Amjad
Common Technology
Limited Mr. Rizwan Ahmad
Directorship




G7 Connect (Pvt.)

Limited

Profitech Services

Limited

Associated by
Mr. Nadeem Amjad
Common 60%
Mr. Rizwan Ahmad
Directorship

Associated by

Common Mr. Amir Zia

Directorship

Technology

Consultancy




KEY OPERATING & FINANCE DATA FOR LAST SIX YEARS

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FINANCIAL POSITION
Fixed assets net 1,734,765,860 814,458,386 735,519,503 740,396,751 501,421,592 513,328,155
Total assets 6,499,162,737 | 2,471,348,598 | 1,318,273,103 | 1,485,873,435 | 1,176,852,428 961,455,329
Paid - up Capital 1,350,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
Equity 4,366,045,109 978,308,204 834,722,343 809,946,606 693,080,903 608,190,213
Long term liabilities 297,605,788 241,961,797 139,515,252 36,408,434 52,847,714 64,703,750
PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
Net Sales 5,795,403,997 | 3,527,625,000 | 2,607,027,951 | 2,003,333,502 | 1,592,058,797 | 1,069,337,610
Gross Profit 780,474,326 436,949,856 330,755,595 262,779,006 208,484,843 127,963,465
Operating Profit/(Loss) 570,970,333 254,114,103 136,427,404 135,481,148 99,662,397 63,257,809
Profit/(Loss) before tax 499,746,398 202,527,899 136,427,404 116,865,703 84,890,691 54,711,991
Profit/(Loss) after tax 351,768,295 143,416,468 27,804,462 116,865,703 84,890,691 54,711,991
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Gross Profit 13.47% 12.39% 12.69% 13.12% 13.10% 11.97%
Net Profit Ratio 6.07% 4.07% 1.07% 5.83% 5.33% 5.12%
RETURN TO SHAREHOLDER
Return on Capital Employed 13.08% 25.97% 16.34% 16.73% 14.38% 10.40%
Earning per share 4.64 31.87 6.18 25.97 18.86 12.16
LIQUIDITY/LEVERAGE
Current Ratio 2.452 1.114 1.169 1.152 1.549 1.535
Break up Value Per Share (With
Revaluation) 32.34 22.10 18.59 16.24 14.47 14.07
Break up Value Per Share (Without
Revaluation) 30.05 217.40 185.49 179.99 154.02 135.15
Debt To Equity Ratio 15% 46% 39% 57% 59% 40%
ACTIVITY
Sales to total assets 0.89 1.43 1.98 1.35 1.35 1.11
Sales to fixed assets 3.34 4.33 3.54 2.71 3.18 2.08
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Return on Capital Employed
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

Rupees in
million
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and Paid up: 200% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Share Deposit Money 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Unappropriated profits -28% 37% 7% 48% 54% 53%
Revaluation Surplus on Land 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Financing - Secured 15% 127% 219% -48% -32% 0%
Deferred Liabilities 45% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Deferred Grant 1525% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Lease Liabilities -44% 38% -27% 50% 0% 0%
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors, Accrued and other liabilities -19% 2253% -46% 32% 74% 28%
Director's Loan -29% 0% -87% | 1046% -86% | 104%
Payable to General Public Against Excess
Prglceeds ’ 100% - - - - -
Short Term Borrowings-Secured 60% -1% -50% 20% 119% -4%
Current Portion of Long Term Financing-Secured 57% 56% 100% 10% 19% 0%
Accrued Mark Up -50% 27% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Provision for taxation 122% 76% 0% 0% 0% 0%
| Contingencies and Commitments | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0%]
| Total Equity And Liabilties | 163% |  87% | -11%]| 26% | 22% | 23% |
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 113% 11% -1% 48% -2% 32%
Intangibles 100% -100% -29% -10% -20% -20%
Long term security deposits 0% 45% 25% 22% 0% 0%
Investment in associated company 100% 48% 0% 0% 0% 0%
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock in Trade -13% 7714% -50% 38% -8% 19%
Trade Debts- Unsecured 48% 87% -45% 43% 0% | 102%
Advances deposits and prepayments 80% 118% -62% 8% 341% 8%
Cash and bank balance 3337% 2% -14% -45% 283% -61%




Total Assets 163% | 87% | -11% | 26% 22% |  23%
) 0 (0) - - -
Turnover -Net 64% 35% 30% 26% 57% | 5%
Cost of sales 62% 36% 31% 26% 56% -5%
Gross profit 79% 32% 26% 26% 63% -1%
Administrative expenses 17% -9% 59% 9% 52% -2%
Selling expenses 12% -2% 46% 27% 93% -2%
15% -6% 53% 17% 68% |  -2%
\ Operating Profit 125% 86% 1% 36% 58% 1%
Financial Charges -1% 138% 26% 30% 9% 483%
152% 78% -2% 37% 67% | -13%
Other income -35% 57% 0% 68% 55% -34%
146% 77% -2% 38% 67% |  -14%
| Other Expenses 133% | 79%|  2%|  38%|  #DIV/O! | #DIV/O! |
| Profit before Taxation 147% | 7% 2% |  38% | 550 | -14% |
| Taxation 150% |  -32% | #DIv/o! | #DIv/0! | #DIV/O! | #DIV/O! |
| Profit after Taxation 145% |  416% | -76%|  38% | 55% | -14% |




VERTICAL ANALYSIS

EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued, subscribed and Paid up:
Share Deposit Money
Unappropriated profits
Revaluation Surplus on Land

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Financing - Secured
Deferred Liabilities

Deferred Grant

Lease Liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors, Accrued and other liabilities
Director's Loan

Payable to General Public Against Excess
Proceeds

Short Term Borrowings-Secured

Current Portion of Long Term Financing-
Secured

Accrued Mark Up

Provision for taxation

Contingencies and Commitments

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles

Long term security deposits
Investment in associated company

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock in Trade

Trade Debts- Unsecured

Advances deposits and prepayments
Cash and bank balance

Rupees in
million
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20.77% | 18.21% | 34.14% 30.29% 38.24% 46.80%
35.79% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
5.86% 21.38% | 29.18% 24.22% 20.66% 16.45%
4.76% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
67.18% 39.59% 63.32%  54.51% 58.89% 63.26%
2.91% 6.66% 5.51% 1.53% 3.71% 6.73%
1.41% 2.55% 4.32% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.14% 0.02% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.12% 0.56% 0.76% 0.92% 0.78% 0.00%
4.58% 9.79%  10.58% 2.45% 4.49% 6.73%
11.17% | 36.19% 2.88% 4.76% 4.56% 3.21%
0.19% 0.70% 1.30% 8.87% 0.98% 8.50%
8.02% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
5.01% 8.22% 15.56% 27.72% 29.14% 16.30%
1.89% 3.17% 3.82% 1.70% 1.95% 2.00%
0.01% 0.04% 0.05% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1.95% 2.32% 2.47% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
28.24% 50.62% 26.10%  43.04% 36.62% 30.01%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
26.69% | 32.96% | 55.79% 49.83% 42.61% 53.39%
0.00% 0.00% 0.20% 0.26% 0.36% 0.55%
0.13% 0.35% 0.45% 0.32% 0.33% 0.00%
3.92% 10.30% | 13.03% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
30.74% 43.60% 69.48%  50.41% 43.30% 53.94%
11.97% | 36.08% 7.74% 13.83% 12.69% 16.82%
6.84% 12.12% | 12.16% 19.55% 17.27% 21.16%
3.14% 4.58% 3.94% 9.31% 10.91% 3.03%
47.30% 3.62% 6.68% 6.91% 15.83% 5.06%
69.26% 56.40%  30.52%  49.59% 56.70% 46.06%




Turnover -Net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling expenses
Operating Profit

Financial Charges

Other income

Other Expenses
Profit before Taxation
Taxation

Profit after Taxation

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
-86.53% -87.61% -87.31%  -86.88% -86.90% -87.41%
1347% 12.39% 12.69%  13.12% 13.10% 12.59%
1.91% 2.68% 3.99% 3.26% 3.76% 3.86%
1.71% 2.51% 3.47% 3.10% 3.07% 2.50%
-3.62%  -5.18%  -7.45% -6.35% -6.84% -6.36%
9.85% 7.20% 5.23% 6.76% 6.26% 6.22%
-0.70%0  -1.25%  -0.71% -0.73% -0.71% -1.02%
9.15% 5.96% 4.52% 6.03% 5.55% 5.20%
0.08% 0.21% 0.18% 0.24% 0.18% 0.18%
9.23% 6.17% 4.71% 6.27% 5.73% 5.38%
-0.61%  -043%  -0.32% -0.43% -0.40% 0.00%
8.62% 5.74% 4.38% 5.83% 5.33% 5.38%
-255%  -1.68%  -3.32% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
6.07% 4.07% 1.07% 5.83% 5.33% 5.38%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF CITI PHARMA LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of CITI PHARMA LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the
statement of profit or loss and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
1o us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the Information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit and
other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinlon,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most
sipnificance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
torming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Other Offices at:.
Islamabad: House # 726, Street 34, Margalla Town, off Murree Road, Islamabad,
Phone ; +92-51-2374282-3 Fax: +92-51-2374281
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Continuation Sheet
Following are the key audit matters:

Key Audit Matters

Revenue:

Refer notes 22 to the financial statements
and the accounting policy in note 3.8 to
the financial statements regarding the
sale of goods,

The Company is engaged in the
manufacturing  of  pharmaceuticals,
medical chemicals and  botanical
products.

During the Year company generated Total
Revenue amounting Rupees 5.8 billion as
compared to 3.5 billion in the last year,
which represents an increase of
approximately 64% as compared to last
year.

Further, we identified recognition of
revenue against the sale of goods as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an inherent
risk of the existence and the accuracy of
the revenue further it could be subject to
misstatement 1o meet expectations or
targets.

How the matter was addressed in
Qur Audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recognition of revenue, amongst others,
included the following:

» Obtalned an understanding of the
processes relating to the recognition
of revenue and accessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over the recording of revenue;

» Assessed the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policies for
recording of sales and compliance of
those policies with  applicable
accounting standards;

» We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with the sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documents;

» We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the
year end with the sales invoices,
delivery orders and other relevant
underlying documentation to assess if
the related revenue was recorded in
the appropriate accounting period;
and

» Compared the details of a sample of
journal entries posted to revenue
accounts during the year, which met
certain specific risk-based criteria,
with  the relevant  underlying
documentation.
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Information Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information Included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 2021 but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any farm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
nformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Hnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 10 be
materially misstated, If based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this
other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management |s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal
cantrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a
puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to drawattention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,

e fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
inmternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a3 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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. Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Hased on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (X1X of 2017);

B the statement of financlal position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash fiows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (X1X of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢l Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of theCompany's business; and

dl Mo zakat is deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Hafiz
Muhammad Ahamd.

Miue |

CRartered Accountants

Mace: Lahore

¢ 3 0 SEP 2021




CITI PHARMA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

Restated Restated
JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020 JUNE 30, 2019
Note Rupees Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND UABILTIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised Capital:
300,000,000 (2020 4,500,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
(2020 Rs. 100} each 3,000,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
Issued, subscribed and Paid up:
135,000,000 (2020: 4,500,000} Crdinary Shares of Rs. 10
(2020-100) each 4 1,350,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
Share Deposit Money 12 2,326,144,000
Unappropriated profits 380,606,584 528,308,204 384,722,343
Revaluation Surplus on Land 5 309,294,525 . -
4,366,045,105 978,308,204 834,722,343
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Financing - Secured 6 189,157,811 164,533,255 72,582,084
Deferred Liabilities 7 91,415,243 62,551,554 56,900,065
Deferred Grant 8 9,273,278 570,828 .
Lease Liabilities 9 7,755,356 13,866,160 10,033,103
257,605,788 241,961,797 139,515,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors, Accrued and other liabilities 10 725,810,472 894,266,474 38,002,573
Director's Loan 11 12,200,000 17,200,000 17,200,000
Payable to General Public Against Excess Proceeds 12 521,384,357
Short Term Borrowings-Secured 13 325,859,597 203,052,948 205,161,201
Current Portion of Long Term Financing-Secured 14 122,936,714 78,414 924 50,368,008
Accrued Mark Up 451,598 207,116 715877
Provision for taxation 126,869,102 57,227,066 32,587,849
1,835,511,840 1,251,078,598 344,035,508
Contingencies and Commitments 15 . . .
6,499,162,737 2,471,348,598 1,318,273,103
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 16 1,734,765 B850 814 458 386 735,519,503
Intangibles 17 - = 2,693,652
Lang term security deposits 8,613,350 8,613,950 5,946,150
Investment In associated company 18 254,540,200 254,540,900 171,823,420
1,997,920,710 1,077,613,236 915,982,725
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock In Trade 18 778,194 441 891,722 967 102,040,296
Trade Debts- Unsecured 20 444,545,802 299,465,022 160,250,042
Advances deposits and prepayments 21 204,077,281 113,103,056 51,920,504
Cash and bank batance 2 3,074,424 503 89,444,317 £8,079,136
4,501,242,027 1,393,735,362 402,290,378
6,499,162,737 2,471,348,598 1,318,273,103

Auditor's report is annexed
The annexed notes form an integral part of thess financial statements

\7/ b u.wufé

Chief Financial Officer Director




CITI PHARMA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Turnover -Net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling expenses
Operating Profit

Financial Charges

Other income

Other Expenses

Profit before Taxation
Taxation

Profit after Taxation
Earning per share:

Basic
Dilutive

Notes

22
23

24
25

26

27

28

29

30
30

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

\

Chief Executive

"

Chief Financial Officer

(35,270,710)

Restated
JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020
Rupees Rupees
5,795,403,997 3,527,625,000
(5,014,929,671) (3,090,675,144)
780,474,326 436,949,856
110,509,868 94,410,370
98,994,125 88,425,383
(209,503,993) (182,835,753)
570,970,333 254,114,103
(40,776,026) (43,923,758)
530,194,307 210,190,344
4,822,801 7,465,677
535,017,108 217,656,021

(15,128,122)

499,746,398 202,527,899
(147,578,103) (59,111,431)
351,768,255 143,416,468
4.64 31.87
2.36 31.87
M Mué
Director




CITI PHARMA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss
- Revaluation Surplus on Land

Note

- Experience adjustment on remeasurement of staff retirement

- Related tax impact

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

\s

Chief Executive

hft

Chilef Financlal Officer

Restated
JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020
Rupees Rupees
351,768,295 143,416,468
709,294,525 -
746,599 238,581
(216,514) (69,188)
1,061,592,905 143,585,861

Director




CITERHARMA UMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
PARTICULARS SHARE SHARE DEPOSIT I REVENUE l REVALUATION — ]
CAPITAL MONEY RESERVES SURPLUS
coveeeo - Rupees
Balance & at July 01, 2019 450,000,000 387,751,068 837,751,068
Eftoct of Crange (n Ervar (5 Nate Na. 4.28| 13,028.72%) (3,028.73%)
Halance as at July 01, 2015 Restated 450,000,000 . 384,772,343 834,772.343
Totad Comprahanddve Incaoma for tho ywoal - Restatod 142,584 300 143 585 500
Batance as sl June 30, 2000- Restated 450,000,000 - 528,308 704 - 978,308 704
Share Dogonit Manesy Recerved - 2,376, 144,000 . - 2306, 144,000
Totn! Comprehermave income for the year 352,290,383 352,298,381
Resavation Saplus on Land 706,204 525 0,204,575
lavaance of Bonus Shares o the rate of bag SO0, XNLOO - CR00, 00000000 (A0O D00 000) -
Shate held for meety o share hedd
Betance ws at June 30, 7021 1,350, 2 148 380, sosglszs 366, 108

Ihe anvmexed potes form o wwegrad part of these finanow stadsrments,

AR TNy

Chief Financal Officer Director




CITI PHARMA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPEARTING ACTIVITIES

Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation

Adjustments For Non- Cash Items And Other Line Itemns:

Deprociation

Amortization

Gratuity Expense

Amartisation of Deferred Grant
Financial Charges

Worker's Profit Participation Fund
Worker's Welfare Fund

Profit/ (Loss) before working capital changes

Effect of working capital changes

Advances, Deposits And Prepayments

Trade Debts

Stock In Trade

Payable to General Public Against Excess Proceeds
Trade And Other Payables

Financial Charges Paid

Income Tax Paid

Gratulty Pad

Worker's Profit Participation Fund
Worker's Welfare Fund

Net cash fiow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase Of Property And Equigment
Long Term Security Deposits

Investment in associated company

Net cash fiow from Investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds less repayment of Loag Term Financing
Liability Against Assets Subjéct To Finance Lease
Dwrector’s Loan

Share Deposit Money less PO Expenses

Short Term Borrowings

Net Cash flow From Investing Activities

Net Increass/ (Decrease) In Cash And Cash  Equivalents

Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of The Year

Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of The Year

Cash and cash equivalents are:
Cash in band
{ash at bank

16.1

71

28

12

11
10
10

161

1

A+B+C

The annexed notes foreh an integral part of these financial stotements,

Ut

Chief Financlal Officer

Restatad
JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020
Rupees Rupees

499,746,398 202,527,899
5,688,582 49,591.520
3 2,693,652
8,256,476 4,361,635

(2,225,941} .
Q0,775,026 43,923,758
26,750,855 11,100,883
8,519,855 4,027,239
147,765 854 115,698 688
647,512,252 318,226,587
121,739,189) 143,683,672}
(145,085,779) (139,214,981}
113,528,526 (789,682,671)

521,384,357 2
{188,558 590) £49,604,299
279,494,325 (122,977,025}
139,222 663) 141,305,025}
(126,462,102} 151,385,004}

(407 602) -
(11,100,883} (6,136,600}
{4,027,239) {2.331,811}
1181,220,489) (101,158,549)
745,786,087 94,091,013
(276,701,531) (115,191 404)
- (2,667,800}
. 182,717,480}
(276,701,531) (200,576,684)
79,349,930 117,810,482
(7,394,348} (7,861,378}

(5,000,000) .

2,326,144,000 -
122,795,649 {2,028,253)
2,515,895,631 107,850,851
2,984,980,187 1,365,180
89,444,317 88,079,136
3,074,424,503 89,444,317
214457 310584
3,074,210,046 89,133,733
3,074,424,503 85,444,317

Director




CITI PHARMA UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
11 The company was incorporated as a private mited company in Pakistan under the Repealed Compames Ordinance, 19384 on October 08,
2012. The principal activty of the company is manufacturing and sale of pharmaceuticals, medical chemicals and botanical prodicts
During the year, the company was converted Into public unfisted company with effect from October 13, 2020 and also the Company
offared 72,69 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1o general public at the strlke price of Rs. 32 per share Including premium of Rs. 22
per share which resulted in 17O proceeds of Rs. 2.326 billion, However, Campany was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange subseguent to
the year end on July 09, 2021, The registered office of the company is situsted at 3.5 KM, Head Balloki Road, Phool Nagar, Kasur. The
Head office of the company stuated at $88 Q Block, Johar Town, Lahore,
1.2 Initial Public Offering (IPO)
During the year, the Company offered 72,69 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 sach to general public at the stoke price of Rs 32 per share
(that inclades premium of As, 22 per share} which resulted in IPO proceeds of Rs, 2.326 tiion. The principal purpose of the fresh eguity
lssuance & to undertaka expansion i the Active Pharma Ingredient & Formulation segments and 50-bed stats-of-the-art healthcare
facility 8t maén Guiberg I, Lahore. Company received IPO Proceeds before the year end, However, subseguent 1o the year énd company
was listed in Pakistan Stock Exchange on July 09, 2021 and shares were also issved on July 09, 2021 The Detalls of 1PO Proceeds are as
follows:
Amount
{Rupees)
Total Proceeds from PO 3,868,347 697
Excess Amount refunded till June 30, 2021 11,020,818,340)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 (IPO Banks Only| 2,847,528,357
Payable to General Public Shown Against Excess Subscriptions in Current Liabilities (521,384,357)
Sharas to be issued Against the Share Deposit Money will be as follows: 2,326,144,000
Ordinary Shares of 72,692,000 Shares of Rs. 10 each 726,920,000
Share Premium of 72,692,000 Shares of Re. 22 each 1,599,224,000
1.3  In March 2020, the Gavernment of Pakistan implemented a country-wide lockdown in order to contan the speead of COVID-19 in the
country. Despite 3 temporary slowdown in sales in 2020, the Company returned to normal levels sfter the lockdown was kfted, In addition
to this there was another lockdown In May 2021 for 3 week, however, this has not impacted the actiyty of the Company, 8ased on the
above, the Company does not have any material effect on these financial statements due to COVID-19.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These financial statements have been preépared under the historical cost convention except that the Company's lability under defined
benefit plan [gratuity) is determined on the present value of defined beneflit obligations &s detesmined by an independent actuary,
2.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financlal statements have been preparad In accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and
Provisions of and directives ssued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives ssued
under the Companies Act, 2017 have baen followed .
23 Functional and presentation currency
Thesa financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupeas which is Company’s functional currency.
24  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting ard reporting standards requires the use of certasn critical
accounting estimatas. It also requires management to exercise its judgment In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies
Estimates and judgments are contirually évalusted and are based on historic experience and ather factors, including expectation of future
avents that are believed to be resonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policias, the
management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:




- assumptions and estimates usad in determining the recoverable

amount, residual values and useful lives of operating fixed assets 161
- assumptioas and estimates usad In revaluation of land 5
- assumptions and astimates used In determining the useful lives 32
and residual values of intangible assets
- assumptions and estimates usad in calculating 19
the provision for impairment for trade debts
assumptions used in determination of current and deferred taxation 7.2
assumptions and estimates used for valuation 71

of prasent yalue of defined benefit obligation
assumptions and estimates used In determining current Income 29

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factoes, including expectation of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,




25
251

31

32

33

Initial application of a standard, amendment or an interpretation to an existing standard

Amendments to published accounting and reporting standards which are effective for the year ended June 30, 2021

There were certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards which becarmne effective for the Company for the current year
However, these are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting and, therefore,
have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Standard, amendments to published accounting and reporting standards end interpretations that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company

There s a standard and certain other amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective and are considered
elther not to be relevant or 1o have any significant iImpact on the Company’s financlal statements and operations and, therafare, have not
been disciosed in these financial statements,

SUMMERY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

OWNED ASSETS

Property, plant and equiprnent except freehold land is stated at cost jess accumulated depreciation and identified impairment losses
Freehold land s stated at Revalued amount, Cost of property, plant and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to
the construction and erection pericd and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets into working condition

Depreciation is charged 1o income on reducing batance method at the rates specified in Note 16, Full month's depreciation is charged on
additions during the month, whereas ne depreciation is charged on the assets disposed off during the month. Where an Impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated
useful life.

Malntenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and replacements are capitaiized. Gains or
losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are included In the cerrent year income.

Residual vaives and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted If expectations differ significantly from previous
estimates. The management astimates that the financial impact of changes In the residual values and the useful lves during the year
ended June 30, 2021 Is immatarial.

Residual values are determined by the management as the amount expects it would receive currently for an item of property, plant and
equipment If it was already of the age and In the condition expected at the end of the life based on the prevailing market prices of the
similar assets alreaady at the end of its useful lves.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset Is recognized as an income or expense.

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to Initially measured lease liability adjusted for lease prepayments made
at or before the commencement date, initial direct cost incurred |ess any lease incentives received,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight fine mathad from the date of recognition to the earlier of the end of
useful fife of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of -use asset is periodically reduced by the impairment losses, f
any, and ad|usted for certain remeasurement of the lease llatiity.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
All expenditure connected with spacific assets incurred during Installation and construction period are carried under capital work in
progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intanglble assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated Impairment kosses. The depreclable amount of
intangible asset is amortized over the estimated useful life using the reducing talance method at the rate stated in the relevant note to
the financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT CF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amount of the Company’s assats is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there s any Indication of
impairment, If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount Impalrment losses are recognized In the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, A previously recognized impairment joss s reversad only If there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. |f there Is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have besn
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the assets in prior year,

Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or joss and other comprehensive income,




STOCKS, STORES AND SPARES

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value as per requiremeants of 1AS 2, Cost of major stock items |s determined as
follows:;

- Stores, spares and loose tooks Al moving average cost
- Raw material Al annual average cost
rise f dir ial, | i
- Finished goods Comprised of direct material, labour, arxi apgropriate
manufacturing overheads
- Waste At net realizabée value,
; Material in transit ;:e stated at irvoice value plus other charges Incurred
ereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimates sefling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary ta be incurred in arder to
make a sale.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

These are classified at ameortized cost and are nitially recognized whern they are originated and measured at fair value of consideration
recewvable, These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, Actual credit loss @xperience over past years
Is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equvalents comprise running finances, cash balances and call deposits with matunties of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an nslgnificant risk of changes in thair fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of
Its shart-tarm commitments.

TRADE DEBTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when thay are originated and measured at fair value of consideration
recenvable, Thase assets are written off when there & no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit [0ss experience over past years
Is used 10 base the calculstion of expected credit loas,

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue when it transters control over gocds to (ts customers, being when the products are delivered to the
customer and there i no unfulfilled obligation that could effect the customer's acceptance of the product. Revenue & recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration, to which the Company expects 1o te entitled in exchange for transferring of goods o it
customers net of discount and sales refated Indirect taxes. The sales related Indirect taxes are regarded as collected on behalf of statutory
authorities. The Company generates revenue by supplying products 1o the customers, including export product.

1) Revenue from sales is recognizéed on delivery of products to the custamers with the exception that export sales if any are recognized at
the time of tssuance of bill of lading.

Ii) Dividend Income is recognized when the right to recelve dividend |s established,

ill) Income on bank deposits and short term nvestments are recognized using the effective yield method.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS

Sale of Goeds

Sale of goods i recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products to the customers and there is na unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.

Contract assets
Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance otligations by transferring goods to a customer bafore the Lustomer
pays its consideration or before payment is due

Contract liabilities

Contract liability s the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from
the customer. If & customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract kability Is recognized whan the payment Is
mage. Contract iabifitles are recognized as revenua when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowirgs are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowing costs are recognized as an expanse In the
penod in which thesa are Incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or
production of & qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, If any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset,

PROVISIONS

Provision is recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obégaton as a result of past event and it is probable that outflow
of rasources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provision is reviewed at each date of statement of financial position and adjusted Lo reflect current best estimate.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value net of directly attributable cost, If any

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All transactions irvolving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's Jength at normal commercial
rates on the same terms and condetions as third party transactions wsing valuation modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare

circumstances where, subject to the approval of the board of directors, it 15 in tha interest of the Company to ¢ 50

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial assets and financial llabiities are recognized at the time when the Company becornes 3 party 1o the contractual provisions of
the Instrument. All the financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company losses control of the contractual rights that
comprise the tinancdial assets. Al financial liabdities are derecognized at the time when they are extingushed that is, when the obligation
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specified In the contract is discharged, cancelled, or xpires. Any gains of losses on de-recognition of the finandal assets and financial
liabilties are taken to the staterment of profit or ioss

Financial Assets
Classification

Effective July 1, 2018, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
a| Amortized cost where the effective Interest rate method will apply,

b} fair value through profit or loss,

c) fair value through other comprehensive income

The classification depends on the entity’s business madel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flaws.

For assats measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded In statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
Far Investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, tha depends on whether the Company has made an irrevecable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity Investment at fair value through other comprebensive income
(FVTOCI]. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets charges.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial aseats are recognised on trade-date, the date an which the Compary commits to purchase of
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship

Measurement

A2 intial recognition, the Comparry measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, In the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit e loss {(FYTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the scquisition of the financial assetr. Transaction costs of financial
aasets carried at FVTPL are expensed in staterment of profit or loss,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered |n thelr entirety when detarmining whether their cash flows are scéely payment
of principal and interast.

Debt instrument
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categaries into which the Company classifies 115 debt instruments:

8] Amortiosed Cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash fiows represent solely payments of principal and
intécest are measured at amortised cost, Interest income from thase financial assets 1« induded in finance Income using the
effective interest rate methad, Ay gain or foss arising on derecogniticn is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
other operating gains/(losses], together with foreign exchange gains and losses, Impairment losses are presented as separate
line stem in the statement of profit or koss.

(b} Falr vatue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assats that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of princpal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL Mavements in the carrying amount are taken
through QI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or ksses, Interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and fosses
which are recognised In profit or loss. When the financlal asset Is deracogrised, the cumulative galn or loss previously
recognisad In OCI & reclassified from equity to statemant of profit or loss and recognised In other icome/charges. interast
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effactive interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gairs and lodses are presénted in other income/charges and impairment expensas are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss

c) Falrvalue through profit or toss (FVTPL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYTOC! are measured at FVTPL A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and presented net within other
operating gaing/(losses| in the period in which it arises,

De-recognition of financial assets
Afinancial asset {or, where applicable part of a financiat asset or part of a group of simiar financial assets) is derecongnized when:

The rights 1o receive cash Mows from the asset have expired

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed anobligation to pay the received cash  flows
In full without material dalay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and 2ither (3] the Company has transferred substantialty
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all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assat, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Comgpany has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from an sssel ar has éntered into 8 pass through arrangerment, and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset

In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated lkability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measures on a basis
that reflects the rights and sbiigatians that the Comgary has retained. Continuing involvement that taked the foem of a guarantee aver the
transferred atset is measured at the lower of the ariginal carrying amaount of the asset and the madmum amount of consideration that the

Impairment of financial assets

Effective July 1, 2018, the Comgpany assesses on a forward looking basls the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with its debt
Irstruments carried at amortised cost and FYOQ. The Impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
Increase in credit rak.

Followng are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL modal:

— Trage debts

— Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
— Short term investments

- Cash and bank balances

Simolified approach for trade debts
The Company recognises ife tirme ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL reflects:
~an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that Is datermined by evaluating a range of possible outcames;

— reasonable and supportable Information that is avallable at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future econemic canditions.

Trade debts are separately assessed for ECL measurement. The lifetme expected credit losses are estimated using the Company's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are spedific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditicns at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate,

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognizes an Impairment gain or loss in the statement of protit or loss for all tinancial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount theough a loss allowance sccount.

Regardless of the analysis above, a sgnificant increase In credit nsk is presumed if a debtor Is more than 120 days past dise In making a
contractuat payment.

Write-off

The Company write off financial assets, in whole or m part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded thare is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expactation of racovery s based on unavailability of debtor's
sources of income or assets to generate sufficlent future cash flows to repay the amount.

Financial Liabilities

Classification, Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company classifies its financial labilites In the following categories

= at fair value through profit or loss; and
« other financial liabilities

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition, All financial Nabilities are recognized Initiaklfy at
tair value and, In the case of other financial liabilitles, also Inctude directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurament of
financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

a)  Fair value through peofit or loss
Financial liabities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabdlities held-fortrading and financial liabilties
designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value theough profit or loss. The Company has not sesignated any financial
Hability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.
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b) Amertisad cost
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at amortized cost,
uzing the effactive Interest rate method. Galn and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss, whan the liabllities
are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate amortization process,

De-recognition of financial liabllities

A tnancial liability is derecognized whan the obligation under the fiability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financiat
lisbility is replaced by another from the ssme lender on substantially diffecent terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially
madified, such an exchange ar madification & treated as a de-recognition of the ociginal liability and the recognition of a new lrability, and
the dgifference in the respective carrying amaunts s recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial habilities.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount |& reported in the financial staternents If the company has legally
enforceable right 1o set-off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settie the lability
wmultaneously

Fair value measurement

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset o paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurémant date. The fair value measurement is Based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
trarsfer the Uability takes place either

a. Inthe principal market for the assat or labllity; or
b. Inthe absence of @ prncipal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the maost advantag market is ible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability s measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asser takes into account & market participant's sbility 1o generate econormic benefits by using

the asset in its highest and best use or by selling It to another market participant that would use the asset m its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniguas that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficent data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inguts and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized withm the fair value
hierarchy, described as folows, based on the lowest level input that & significant to the fair yatue measurement as a whole:

a Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assats or labdities,

b, Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measwrement i directly or
Indirectly observable; and

[ Level 3 Valuation techneques for which the fowest levet nput that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unchservable

For assets and liabllites that are recognized in the financial statements at falr value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization |based on the lowest fevel Input that is significant
to the fair value measurement a5 s whole) at the end of each reporting perled,

The Company’s Chief Financial Officer determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for non-
recurring measurement. External valuers may be involved for valuation of significant assets and significant Rabilities. For the purpose of
falr value cisclosures, the Company determines classes of assats and liabilities on the basis of the nature. characternistics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

CONTINGENT UABIUTIES
Contingent kabilities are disclosed when there iz possible obligation that anses from past events and whose ewstence will be confirmed

only by the acourrence or non occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not whally wathin the control of the company; or there
Is presant obligation that arises from past events but it Is not probabie that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wil be
required to settle the cbligation or the armount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient celiability

TAXATION
Current Tax
Provision for current Laxation i based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits
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and tax rebates avallable, f any,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the llability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date calculated at the prevalling
rates, between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying costs for the purposes of financial reparting. Deferred tax Kabilities
are recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that such differences will reverse in the due future and taxable income
will ba availabie for deducting temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset |5 reviewed on the talance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it & no longer probable
that the sufficient taxable profit will be available to akow in all or part of it for the deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabwdities are measured at the tax rates that are axpected to apply 10 the period when the assets is realized or the
liabilety is settlod based on the tax rates that have been enacted currently or subsequently at the balance sheet date.

Unrecognized deferred Income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that It becomes
probable future 1axable profias will allow deferred tax asset o be recovered.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COST
Research expense is recognized n profit or loss account in the year of expense and development cost is cagitalized in the year when
meets the development criteria,

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company oparates spproved un-funded gratuity scheme for ts workers wha have completed the minimum qualifying periad of
service as defined under the respective scheme. Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of
actuarial valuation and 5 charged to statement of profit or loss

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan s calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned In the current and prior parieds, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

Calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
caiculation results in & potential assat far the Company, the recognized asset s limited to the prasent value of economic benefits avaliable
In the form of any future refunds from te pan or reductions in futuré contribution o the plan To calculate the present value of
econamic benefits, consideration is grven 1o any applicable minimuem funding fequirements,

Remeasurements of the net defined banefit kabllity, which comprise actuanial gasns and bosses, the return on plan assets (excluding
Interest] and the effect of the asset cedling [, any excluding interest), are recognized iImmediatedy in OCI. The Company determines the
net intarest sxpense (Income) an the net defined benefit lability (asset) for the period by spplying the discount rate used 10 measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the anmual periad to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking info account any
changes in the net defined benefit liabidity (asset) dunng the penod as a result of contpbutions and benefit payments. Net interest
expanse and other expensas related to defined benefit plan Is recognized In statement of profit or loss.

When the benafits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtaded, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain
or loss on curtailment & racognized immadiately in statement of profit or loss, The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
sattlement of 3 defined benefit plan when the settiamant occurs

LEASE LIABILITY
The leass Rability was measured upan initial recognition at the present value of the future leass payments over the lease term, discounted
with the specific incromental borrowing rate

Subsequently laase kabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interast rate method It is remeasurad when there is 3
change In future lease payments arsing from a change in the rate, if there Is 3 charge In the Company’s estimate of the amount expected
10 be payable under a residual value guarantee, of If the Company changas its assessment of whather It will exescise & purchase, extension
of termination option.

OFF SETTING:
Financlal assets and liabilities are offset and the amount is reported In the financial stataments only when there is legally enforceable right
to sat-off the recognized amount and the cormparny Inténds either Lo settle on & net Basis, or Lo realize the assets and 1o settle the liability

EARNING PER SHARE:

The company presents basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basis EPS is calculated by diviging the profit or loss
atributable 10 ardinary sharehciders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EP5 is
determined by adjusting the profit ar loss stiributable ta ordinsry shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects for all dilutive potential ardinary shares,

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
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Fareign currency transactions are recorded at the offical exchange rate applicable at the transaction date. Monetary assets and Rabilities
are translatad into rupees wsing official exchange rates applicable at the statement of financlal postion date. All gains and losses on
settlement and transaction at year-end are recognized In the income staterment.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity in return for comgliance with certain past or future
conditions related to the entity's oparating activitias - e g a government subsidy, The definiton of “government" refers to governments,
govemment agencses and similar bodses, whether local, naticnal or international.

The Company recognizes government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be recesved and the Company will be
able to comply with conditions associated with grants.

Government grants are recognized at fair value, as deferrad income, when there s reasonable assurance that the grants will be received
and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the grants.

Grants that campensate the Company far experses incufred, are recognized on & systernatic basis in the incorme for the year in which the
related expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in Income on a systematic basis over the
expacted useful life of the related assat

A loan 15 inetially recognized and subsequently measured In accordance with IFRS 9, IFRS 9 requares loans at below-market rates to be
Initiadly maasured at thelr farr value - e.g. the present value of the axpected future cash flows discounted at a markst-related interest rate.
The benefit that is the government grant Is measured as the gifference between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition ang the
amount received, which is accounted for according 10 the nature of the grant.

DIVIDEND TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction form accumulated profit In the statement of changes in equity and as &
liabilty In the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dwidends are approved by the Board of Directors or the Company's
shareholders as the case may be.

SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are classifled as share capital Incremental costs directly attributable to the Issue of new shares are shown In equity as 2
deduction, net of tax.

OPERATING SEGEMENT

Operating segments arg reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating docision maker. The
chief operating decision maker, who Is responsbie for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been Identdied as the Board of Directors of the Compary that makes strateglc decisions.

Effect of Change in Error

During the year company first time adopted 1AS-19- Aetiremaent Banefits with retrospective effect, In the previcas year Company did not
accounted for Gratuity Expense in the financial statements In accordance with tha 1AS -19 This error has retrospective effect in
accordance with the requirements of 1AS 8 "Accounting, Polictes, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors® with effect from earliest
period and figures have been restated accoraingly

As at June 30, 2020
Carrving Amount  As|
Stated Effect of Evvor As Restated
Effect on Statement of Financial Position
Accurmutated Profits (Opening Balance of Equity) 333,385,966 (3,028,725) 530,357,241
Seaff revrement benefits - gratulty - 7151779 7,151,719
Deferred Taxation 57,913,791 (2,074,016) 55,839,775
Effect an Statement of Profit or Loss Account
Cost o f Sale: Salarles:
Wages & Other benefits 89,616,693 2,730,753 92,347 448
Administrative Expenses:
Salaries, Wages & Other benefits 31,513,439 960,261 32,473,700
Selling & Distribution Expenses:
Salarses, Wages & Other benefits B7,754,763 670,621 88,425,384
Taxation:
Deferred Tavation 4,027,570 12,143,208) 1,884,365
Effect on Statement of Comprehensive Income:
Experience adustment on remeasurement of staff ratirement- - {169,393) {169,393

Net of Deferred Tax




CITI PHARMA UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 Rupees
< SHARES CARITAL
Authorized share capital 3,000,000.000 450,000,000
300,000,000 2030: 3,500,000 Ordirary shares of Rs. 10 {2020: 100) each
tssued, subscribed and paid up capital
Opening Balance
45,000,000 {2020: 4,500,000] Ordinary shares of Re. 10 {2020: 100} edch, Ny paid in cash 450,000,000 450,000,000
Mavement During the Year
90,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 10 each issusd as fully paid Banus shares S00,000,000 .
Closing Salance
45,000,000 {2020 £,%00,000] Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 {2020 1651 each, fully paid m cash 450,000,000 .
20,000,000 Qrdinary Share of Ry, 10 each lssued 25 tully paid Bonus shares $00,000,000 -
125,000,000 {2020 4,500.008) Ordinary Shares at Rs. 10 {2020:100) 1,.350,000,000 450,000,000
a1 Voring rights. board selection, right of first refesal and block veting are in propertion to the shareholding
5 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON LAND
Opening Balarce - .
Surplus during the yesr T09.234.525 -
Borws Shares sued against Revalustion Surplus {400,000,000)
Cloging Balance 305,294,525 -
=
51  The latest revaluation of freehald land has been carmed cut 25 at December 01, 2020 by independent Valuators on the basts of their professonal assessment af present
market value, bazed on enquiries made about the cost of land of semilar nsture, size and location, The Forced Safe Value of Land is R5.891 803,000
6 LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED
Blamic Fnance Under Musharaka Arrangoment 61 . 3,748,750
iong term loan from Pak Srunes Investment Comparry 62 135,583 342 201,527,783
Term finance sgalrat purchase of mathinery 63 32333013 22,324,367
Teern Loan Foe Sslary & Wages Under SBP Refinance Scheme 64 59,108,483 10,776,666
financa of Machinary in 582 - TERF 65 B4 642 858 -
315,727,436 236,377,566
Deferred Grant 8 [87,863,734) 12,028.239;
Current Portion shawn under ourrent liabilties |106.705.951) {70516072)
183,157 811 164,533,255
6.1  Blmi finance under Musharaka Arrangemant |t obtained from the Bank of Khybor with mark up of three manths KIBOR + 300 bps payable in 60 nstaliments. The
arangemant is secured against Asset Acgured under D g A %a Arrange: and Perscral guarantees of all directors of the campany
62  Thisoan s abtained from Pak Brunel vestment company which carrss mark up of three months KIBOR + 250 bps and Is rapayatile in 42 ingtaliments. The arrangement Is
secured against Fued Assets and Parsonal guaranteses af all directars of the comparny
6.3  Term Finance Facility = obtamead from the 8ank Al Habib Limited with mark up of three months KIBOR + 225 bps and is repayable in 48 instatmeants,
64 inadditon to the abovs, the Company has als0 obtainad long term loans from Bank Al Habih Umited amounting Rs. 61.27 milkon for financing its s@aries and wages undar
S8P Refinance Schame for payment of wages and salaries, sarmarked from ruaning finance limit, which ls secured agairst Parl Passu ypothecatian charge over fued assets
‘with the Bank Al Habib Limited, The rate of markup on these lcans are 31 3% per annum. These loans are for two and half yasrs snd are repayable in sight equal quarterly
nstalmants
85 0 acddaicn to the abowe, the Campany has 3ko obitained long term loans of Rx. 84 542 milion far financing Impart of plant and machinery from Bank Al-Habi Limited,
which |5 secured against spacfic Parl Passu charge avar machinery imparted. The rate of mackup on thase loans are at 5% per annum which hclude 4% BAHL share and 1%
S8P share, Thesa kaans are for four years and are rapayabio in fiftéen agual quarterly mstaimants unciar SBP TERF scherna Inciading thrae month grace period from the date
of Ssbursement and mark up 10 be recaverabke an quarterly basls
? DEFERRED LIABILITY Restated
S2afY retirerment banelits - gratulty 71 14,254,054 715177
Defarrod Tacation 72 77,155,289 $5.839.775
21.413.243 82331034
7.1 Suaff retitement benefits - gratsty
7.1.1  Netiabilty recognized In the of financial p
Present value of dafired benefit cbligation: MM 7|£779
712 Maovement in the net liability recogrized in the statement of financial position
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7.15

7186

718

72

Net liability as &1 182 Joy

Erperss recognized i the Income statemsnt

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurement changes chargeable to cther comprebansive iIncome

Nat Hability a5 at 302k June

LY in the pr value of defined benefit cbligation is as follows:
Presant value of defimed banef obigatan as a1 1st il

Current service cost

int=rest cost

Beradil paid

Remwasurement of abligation

Frasent value of dufined banefit chigation as 3t 30eh June

Amaunt Chargeable to Statement of Profit or Loss

Service Cont
Interest Cast
Allocation of charge for the year
Cost of Sales
Administrative Experses
Markoting Expences
r \zed in cther h I are:

L) A

Actuaral loss / (gain) due ta eeperignce adjistments

Koy actuarial assumptions used.

7151779 3,028,725
8256476 4,361 635
(407.603) .
(786,559) [£38,581)
14,254,054 7,181,775
7151,77% 3,028,725
7551678 4,058,762
694,798 2802
(&07,802) .
(746.559) (238.581)
XY ATEL
7561678 4058762
694,798 32,873
8755476 4,351,635
——— ——
5057475 2,730,753
2352559 950,263
936,442 570,621
256,76 a3
(746,59 238,561

The comparyy cperates 3 defined banefit plan which compnses an unfunded gratulty scheme for its pesmanent employees. The scheme defined the amounts of the banefit
that sn employes will recsive on or after retiremertt subject to minimum qualifying parod of servics under the scheme. Actussial valuation of the scheme = carried out
vRey year and the latest actuarial valuaton was cartled out on June 30, 2021 usng Projected Unit Cradit mathod By an appeoved actuary,

20 2020
Average Expected Remaining Working Lifetime of Members 10 years 10 years
Average Duration of Liability 9 years 9 years
Sensithity analysis for o i
The ithity of the defined benefit cbigation to changes in the weig! prinople ptian is:
Change In Incregse in Decrease in
Discount rate +-by 100 Eps 13032889 15,583,257
Salary incresse +- by 100 bps 15.559,640 13,033 048
Deferred Taxation
Opering deferred tax Bablity 55,839,775 53.871,340
Deferred tax charged / (reversal} to profit o loss
Accelerated tax deprecaticn 21,304,223 3, 713637
Intangible sssets 706,765 [604.a68)
S1aff reticement benefas - gratulty 12,276.173), {2,143 204}
Uabilities against 355815 subject to finance kease 1374186 873311
21,109,001 1,899,247
Deferred tax o other comprehensh
Employees’ retrement benefitz 216514 69,188
77,165,289 55839775
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- preelerated tax deprecistion 78638.215 57,333931

- Intangiile 358ty - (706,765)
Lease Lability 2,560,750 1.285.564
- Staff retirement beanefits - gratuity 14,133,676) 12,074,018}

D ssee

DEFERRED GRANT
As at 01 July 570,328 -
Recelved diring the yesr 17.383.734 1,028,23%
Amartization 13,302,867 (2,453)
15,131,685 1025746
Current potion 15.558.417) (854.948)
A5 at 30 June 9.273278 570,828
LEASE LIASILTIES
The amount of future minmum leaze payments alorg with their present value and the perod during which they fall due are 22 under:
Nat later then ong year 3,802,216 837234
Later than one year but not Lter than five years 8325767 15,181,878
12,628 583 24534324
Less: Finanoe charge (1,883,332| 14.076.438)
10,745,251 10,463,885
Less: Current maturity of long term chligation (2,982,895 (6,597,725)
7,755,356 13,866,150
Payable within one year 2,989,865 6,597,725
Payable after one yesr 7,755,356 13,866,160

T/ S X8

The Company entered into lease agreements with financial msttuticrs to acquire vohides. Tha liabiinies under the lease agreements are payable n equa moothiy
irstallments and are subject to finance charges 3t the rates ranging from & manths KIBOR » 2 5% 10 3.35% and 27% per annum Jung 30. 2015 - & months KEOR + 254 to
395% and 22%, per annum| The lease Habilities are secured agalnst secunty deposts, post dated chaques, parsanal guarantes of all the directors of the Campany and ako
secured against financed vehicles,
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JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER EXPENSES Rupees Rupees
Track creditars €67,7721,033 AS8553.117
Accrued expenses 11.218,724 20,580,235
Warker's Profit Participation Fund 101 26,750,855 11,100,883
Workar's Welfsre Fund 102 8519,855 4,027,238
725,810,472 594,265,474
Waorker's Profit Participation Fund
Balance as at July 01 11,100,883 6,135,605
Expense recogneed during the yeasr 28 26,750,855 13 100,883
37,851,738 17,237,492
Less: Payments during the year 111.100.883) 16.135.509)
Halance as at June 30 26,750,855 11,100,383
Waorker's Welfare Fund
Balance as at Iuy 01 4,027,239 1331911
Expesise recognized during the year 28 8,518,855 -
12,547,094 23191
Less: Payrments dunng the year [4.027.239) [2.331911)
Balance as at June 30 gm,-gss .
DIRECTOR'S LOAN 11 12,200,000 17200000
12,200,000 17,200,000

Intarest fre Loan abtaned Director of the compary amounting Rs. 17,200,000/~ (2020: &5, 17,200,000 } 10 meat warking capital requirements of the compary witheus any

security and shall be payable on demand of the Drectar. The max aggregate ant ding durirg the year was 17,2 mdlian.

Payable to \gainst Excess P d: 121 521,334 357 -

This represents refund amount partaining ta unsuccesstul applcant under Initial Pusite Dffaring,

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS-SECURED
Usage of Usance LC Limit 131 325,359,597 104,149,098
Bank Murabaha Faciity 132 - 96,913,850

T )TN
This faciity of import sght/ usance LC havng Frnit up to Ry 550 Milion (2020: Re 550 Milion] has been cbtained from The Bank of Kiwber IDB Shatialam markst. Lahore
undier Mark up arangement SO% of BOK, IBG'S Scheduls of charge, Tha Facllity wil be settled through diant's own sources masimam within 90 days. This facikty is secured
againgt the TRM of industrial property, corporate guarantes of the company, 25% cash margin on LC value, Lian on Import documents, and first exchusie margin charge
with SECF. This fac#ity is generally for 3 pericd of one year under narmal course of busoass and ranewable at their zole discration at the end of the peried

This facliay of stisana having limit up to Rs 100 Millian has baen obtained from The Bank of Khyber IS8 Shanalam market, Lahore under conditians 3MK + 3000ps. The
Faciity will be settiad through Bullet puyment of sach sub Istisuna {inchuding Cost Plus profit], This faclity Is secured sgainst Equitable mortgage through MODTD over
property alréady mortgage ta sequre Lmit. First Exclusive Change = favor of BOK to be registered in SECP over all present & tuture tieed assets of tha company with 25%

margn This facility is generady for a periad of ane year from the Date of CAD clearance and further terure of sub- murabaha upto 05 months
his facdity of impart sght/ usance LC having Smit up 1o RE 225 AAllan (2020 Rs, 225 Milion| has bean cbiained from The Sank Al Habit Umited. Johar Town, Lahore | The
Faciity will be zattiad through client's own sources manimum within 30 - 90 days. This £acility (s securad against the TRM of industrial praperty, corporate guarantee of the

company, 20% cash margin on LC valus, Lien on import documents, and first exdusive margn charge with SECP. This faclity is genarally for a pernod of one year under
nermal caurse of business and renrwibie at ther sole Gscretion 3t the end of the periad,

Rurning Finaaxs have been obtained from Bank A Habib Limited for Ry, 25 milllon with pricing of thrae manths KIBOR plus 2.25%. This & secured againgt charge over ind,
tuilding and Flant & Machinery and current assets.

Current Portion of Long Term Financing-Secured

Long Term Finarces 134,564,368 71,817,265
Lease labilitiey 5,372,346 6,597.725

122,936,714 78,414,998
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The faciity paymant security guaraniee Letter of Guarantaa Limit having lemit up ta Rs. 36 Millian has been cbtained from The Bank of Khybar IBE Shahafam market, Lahare
under seryice charges as per BOK BG's schedule of charges. This facility is securad agairst 15% cash margin on LG valus and counter guarantes= of the comparyy. This facility
& geresally for 3 perod of ong year under narmal course of business and renewable at their sole discretion at tha end of the perod
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Commercial Vehice larak Fachity has been cbtamed from bank amounting A= 17.085 Million out of which Rs.12.382 Millian = outstanding. {2020: fis 10.25 Milion out of
which A=.5240 Mllion b outstanding). Tenure of this faclity is vary from 3 0 5 years. Rental pyyments are charged in the income statement in the year in which it is
oowred Rental rate are charged s 03 months of Kibor + 300 Bps, with Floor of $06 and Cap 17% and 300 security Depasit. Registration of the vahides 1s in the name of
Finsncial nstzution

The amount of future Payments under lease and the period under which these became due are as fallows:

Not Ster than ane year 4613361 3147012
Later than one year but not later than fve yoars 1778820 2,093,266
Later than five years = >

1 81 5,240,278




JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020

Rupess RAupees
16 PROPERTY PLANT & EQUWPMENT
Cperating aszats {attached note 16.1) 1,734,785, 860 $14,458 386
17 WVESTMENT IN ASSOCATED COMPANY
Balarwa at the beginning of the year 354,540,500 171,823,420
Further investment - 81.717.480
254,580,500 254,540,300
m—

17.1  Thes represents irvestment In Yageen Developers (Private) Limited an associsted company, Investments in assocated companies have been made n accordance with the
requirements of Caompanies Act, 2017

18 STOCKIN TRADE

Raw material 4391 895 g%3 703 853,052
Stock in transit 200,336,280 151928 665
Workin process 3,624,242 11,765,000
Finished goods 82,338030 14,176,250

778,194,441 891,722,967

19 TRADE DESTS- UNSECURED

Consdered Gocd 444,545,802 299 465,022

444,545,800 209,465,022

20 LOANS, ADVANCES DEROSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

AQVRNCR INCOma tax 01 138,025,450 63,790,454
Advance agalnst impors 37,160,000 43 154 250
Advance to employees- unsecured 3,829,191 1054352
Other Agvances- ursscured 35,062,600 104,000
04077281 113,103,056
20,1 ADVANCE INCOME TAX
Opening balanoe 58,790,454 49,993,299
Tax deducted during the year 126,462,102 51385004
Taxadusted for the year (57,227 086) |32,587,845)
138,025,450 58,730,454
21 CASH AND BANK SBALANCE
Cah in hand 214,457 310.584
Cash at baks
Current Accounts 31,878,752.355 14 558,045
Saving Accounts 211 195457691 74,265,688
3,074,424,503 85,444,317

211 The Rate of fieturn oo Saving Accounts = Ranging from 3.25% to 7% (2020 325 to 7 50%),

22 TURNOVER
Salas 5.946,303.070 3,593.132,5C0
Sales Returns (148,384 $11) |65,507, 500)
Sales Discount (3014,562|

5,795,403,997 3.527,625,000

221  Bevenue has been recognized at & paint in time for local sales made duning the yesr.
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241
242

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumead
Salaries. Wages & Other benefits
G BIE

Electnciy

Weed/com cube

Fuel and Pawer

Repair & mainterarce
Depraciation

Amartzation

Tther Production Espenses

Work in Process:
Qperveg Work in Process
Clasing Work In Process

Coz=2 of goods manufactured

Finshed goods:
Operirg finished goods
Closing fireshad gocds

RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening Stack
Raw Material Purchases
Clozing stock

231
32

This weludes Rs, 507 milllan |2020; Rs. 2.73 millon), appradimataly, In respect of amalayes benafits - gratuty schemae,

ADMINIETRATION EXPENSES
Salares, Wages & benefits
Electneity bl

Telephons bl postpad
Printing & Statonary expense
Soclal Security & £08|
Gardening espense
Depreciaton

Amartzation

Water & zanatian

Unifarms expense

Legal and Professanal Charges
Goneral repair & Maintenance
tee and Subscription
Insurance Experses

Staft welfare expenses
Entertainmant Expanse
Postape and courier
Miszellanesus Expenees

This includes Rs. 2.25 million |2020: Rs. 96 milion), approximately, In respect of employes benefits - gratuty scheme.

Legal & Professional Charges incude

Aodit Fee
Qther Sevvices/Cortifications

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries & benefits
Defivery/caurier axpense
Communizaton Expenses
Marketing & s=firg sxpenses
Other misosdaneous expease
Deprediaton

Amartzation

This ncludes Rs.0.94 millian (2020 Rs. 057 milkon), appraximately, in respect of emplayee benefits

« gratutty scheme,

4,584,895,304 2,684,246.773
136,134,889 92,347,406
8323530 3012810
93,590,843 76,548 430
152,575,781 142,657,272
853,713 7,830,242
22,902,765 18,607,274
54,823,515 39,893,788

- 1345826

7500338 10,859,532
5,064,5%0,693 3,077,366,334
11.765.000 11,508,000
13.624.242) 111.755.000)
8,140,758 {257,000}
%.073,081,451 3,077,108,334
34,175,250 37,742.000
(u,saa.caoJ {24,175,250)
56,161,780) 13,563,750
5014529671 3.090,675.144
— I
703,353,052 52,790,236
4,372.938,141 3,335,309.520
451,595 889) (103,253,052}
MBI 26M T
F0,540,426 37,473,700
2295.521 43,040
111,644 673.593
2336910 4,791,793
1,958,434 2583831
3008681 4,075,500
6,550,309 5,766,577

- 673413

21,580 20,510
604421 1.027.407
4,542,000 650,000
857,255 236,707
1323,267 1,820,478
1108,877 218,680

- 10,655,828

10141 884 12,682,153
44740 295,536
6,903,458 5288063
110,509,858 94410370
1.000,000 00,000
103,000 30,000
1,100,000 680,000
15,168,084 2678772
313355962 28,953,045
155,000 1,705,567
32,033,603 28,427,655
4701711 2051576
4,184,759 3,925,155
673413

98,954,125 88,425,383
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FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank Charges 785,208 479,286
Mark up on Short Tarm Financng 11.543,667 13,790,270
Barah Rentaly (Operating Lease) 4 247,569 1781003
Markup on Hirance Lease 1598 346 2427454
Markup on Lorg Term Financing 12.595,239% 23.545,692
A0, 776,026 43,923,758
OTHER INCOME
#rom Nen Financial Assets 271 4522801 T A65677
4,822,801 7465677
This represents profit earned on =aving accaunt and amartisation of grant income.
OTHER EXPENSES
Warker's Profit Participatian Fund 75,750,855 11,100,883
Waorkar'’s Welfare Fund 8.519,85% 4.027,238
35,270,710 15,128,122
Restated
TAXATION
Current tax 116,569,102 57,227 066
Deterrad tax adjustment 11.109.001 1,554,365
147,578,103 59,111 431
Relationship & Tax bap and A ing Profit
Prafit befors tax 499.746,358 202,527 B9s
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (29%) 144 926 455 8,733,091
Prior Year Tax Provioion - =
Others |13.057,.354) 11.505.025)
1258539,102 57,227 066
Rexxated
BASKC EARNING PER SHARE- BASIC
Net profit sfter taxation Rupees 351,768,255 143,416 468
Weighted Average No. of Shares Outstanding at the year and Number 75,809,589 4.500.000
faming Per Share-Basic fupes: 464 31.87
BASIC EARNING PER SHARE- DILUTIVE
Nat prafit after tavation Rupans 35),768,255 143,416,468
Welghted Average No. of Shares Outstanding at the year end Number 75,809,585 4,500 200
Numiber of Shares ta be lssued to General Fubic agairst Share Deposit Money Number 72962000 -
148.771,589 4.500.000
Earrong Per Share-Diutive fupeer 2.36 3187
FINANCAL BISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has expasure 10 tha following risks armg from Financial instruments:
- cred® risk
« liquidity risk
~ market rizk
Risk maragemnent framewark
The Company's Board of Cirectoes (‘the Soard®) has overall dity far estabishment ang ight of the C v's nsk 35 1t fr. The Boarc is

responsibis for devaloping and manitaring 1he Company’s sisk management policies.

The Comparyy's risk mansgement polices sre established ta identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to st appropriste risk Imits and contrals. and to manitar
naky and adherence 1o limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviswed regularly to refiect charges in market conditions and the Comparry’s aetivties, The
Company, through its training and managomant standards and precedurss, alms to develop @ disciplined and constructive contral environmant in which all amployoas
ungerstand theer roles and chigatlons. The Board af Directors reviews and agrees upon the policies for managing each of these risks.

Credit risk

Lredit risk is the risk of finarcial loss to the Company # a customer or countamarty ta a finandial instrument fotls to mest its contractual cbiigations. To manage cradit risk

the Comparry maintains procedures covering the application for tredt approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty dmis and monitoring of exposures against these

Smints As part of these processes the finarcial visbibty of all counterparties it regudarly monitored and sssessed.

Expasure to credit risk

The carnying amourt of financal assets represents the maximum cradit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit nzk as ot the end of the repurting period was as follows:

2021 2020

Long term securty deposts 8613,950 8,613,950
Trade Debrs- Unsecurad 444,545,802 159,465,022
Sank Balerces 3,074.210,096 89,233 7353

Concentration of credit risk

‘The Comparry identifies  of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maxmum exposure to credi risk by type of counterparty is 25 follows:
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Customers 444 545 BO2 265465022
Banking companies 3074,210046 $3,133,723

Credit quality and impairment

Cradit quality of financal assets i assessed by reference to @xsernal credda ratings, where available, of to historical information about counterparty default rates. Al

counterpanties, with the exception of custamers, have axtemnal credt ratings detarmined by varaus cradit rating agencies Credit quality of oustomers Is assessed by
ference to hiztorical defaults rates and present ages.

30.13{a) Counterporties with externol credit rotings

30.13(b)

3021

Thase Inchade barking companies and financlal Instinuations, which are counterpartios are bank balences Thase courterparties have reasorably high cradit ratngs as
determined by vanous credit rating agendes Due to long =anding buzness relationships with theze countecparties and dering their strong financal standing,
management does not expect non-parformance by thess counterparties on their abligstions to the Compary, Following are the oedt ratngs of counterparties with

extemal credit ratings:
|_m | ! |
| Short Term snortTerm |  longTerm |
Bank Al +abb Limited PACRA Ale Als Ak
The Bank of Khybes PACRA AL Al A
Askar Bank Limited PACRA A1+ Ats Ahs
Meezan Bank Limited IS Al A-ls AAe
Allied Bank Lmitad PACRA Ads Ady AL
Bank alfalah Umited SACRA Acle Acls Al
VIS Al Ale Als
Faysal Bank Limitad PACRA Al Als AR
Vis Al Aly an
Habio Bank Limited VIS Ale Al AAA
Pat Brunel irvestment Company Umited VIS A-1+ Al AA+

(< parties without ol credit ratings
These include custamens which are counter parties to trade detts The Company Is exposed to crede risk in respect of trade dehts. The analiysis of ages of trade debits of the
Company &2 at the reporting date is as follows:

2001 2020
Rupees

Past dus 1 -30 Days 358,425,064 245358 524

Past due 31 - 60 Cays 46,120,738 50,100,898

Past due 61 - 120 Dayr + -

Batad on past mxpérienca the managsment beliaves that no iImpalrmens allawance is necessary In respect of trade debts past dun as sama racehables have been recavered

subzequent to the year and and far athar bies there are ble grounds to beteve that the amounts wil be recovered in shart course of time.
Ugusdity risk
Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company wil encaunter difficulty in ing the obigatl lated with its & | Iablites that are settled by debvenng cash oc

another finanoal asset, or that such obligations wil have ta be zettiad in 8 manner unfaverable to the Company, Prudent figudity nsk manag impliez mai 8
sufficient cash and marketable sacurities and availabiity of adequate funds through committed credit faciities. The Comaany finarces its cperations through equity,
DOrrowings 3nd working capital with a Wew 10 mamtaining an appropnate mis between various sources of financs to | ze fisk. The 8 T 3iMs Lo maintai
flaxibility in funding by keeping regudar committed credt Inas,

Expasure to liquidity rsk

30371{a) Contractua! maturities of financial Nabilities, including estimated interest payments

‘The folowing are the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts are grossed and undiscounted, and nclude estimated nterest payments and
axciude the impact of netting agreement=.

Amount Contractual Cash Flows Less than 1 year More than 1 yesr

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Mon-derkvative financial labilities
Al une 30, 2021
Long Term Loans 315,727 496 437.167.204 106,705,951 97979533
Sxaff retirement benafits - gratuty 14,254 054 12,253,054 . 14,758,054
Lease Liakiiitiez 10,745.251 12,528,583 4,245,850 B383133
Creditors, Acorued and other lablities 834,766,474 B94, 266,474 - 894, 266474
Director's Loan 12,200,000 12,200,000 - 12200000
Short Tarm Barrawings-Sacured 325,858,597 125,859,597 . 325,859,597
At June 30, 2020
Lorg Term Loans 214,083,199 259.526,447 97,979,531 191,546.914
Szaff ratiremsnt banafits - gratury 7351779 7154779 - 7151779
Lease Labilmes 20,463 885 20463885 §%37,725 13,855,160
Trade ard other payables 894.265474 B9L 266,474 . 884,266,473
Advances from Related Parties 17,200.000 17,200,000 - 17,200,000
Short Term Barrowngs-Securad 203,062,948 205,062,548 . 203,062,948
Market risk

Markat risk 15 the risk that changes In market prices, such as forsign axchange rates, Intarast ratas and sguny paces will atfect the Company's Income or the vaiue of its

idings of finanoal 1 The aby af market risk management 15 to manage and control markes risk exposures wathin bile p . whie optmzing
retuen,
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30.3.2{a)

30.3.2(b)

30.3.2(c}

Currency risk

The Camgpany 1§ exposed 10 currency nisk 1o the axtent that there is & mamatch beswean the currances in which advances. sales #nd purchases and baak balances are
denominated and the functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Campany Is Fak Rupee. The Campany is not exposed to ourmancy nek,

Interest rate risk

'Interest rate rick |s the risk that fair values or future cash Plaws of & financiel instrument will fuctuste because of changes in Mlerest rates. Sensitidty Lo interest rate fisk
arises from mismatch of financial assats and financial Rabilities Ehat matura of re-prics In & gven period

Mark-up bearing financial instruments
The wffective intersst [ mark-up rates for interest [ mark-up besting fnendal sstruments are mentioned in relevant nates to the financisl statements. The Comparny’s
Imecest / mark-up bearing firancial instrumeants &s a1 the reporting date are a1 follows:

B 7 T

2021 020
Fived rate instruments 143751141 10,776,666
Varisble vate Fstruments 508,561,203 143,100,650

Cash flow sensitivity analys:s for variable rate Instruments
A ressonably possible changs of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would heve inceazed / [decraasad) aquity and profit by amounts thown below, The
analysls sssurmes that all other yatiables in particular Toreign exchargs rates, remain constant,

Effect on profit befare taxation
200 2020
icrase o 100 st goncs possaia) _ (ssnoon
Oecrease of 100 basis paints 5,085,812 4,431,007
——
Interest rate risk management
The Comparvy ges these mi theaugh risk management strategies where sgnificant changes in gap position can be sdjusted. The Company’s borrowings are

based on varabie rata pricing that is mostly dependient on Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate (*KIBOR') as indcated in respective nates.

Price risk

Price rizk represerts the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of finanzial sstrument will floctuate because of changes in market prices, ather thon thoze ariting from
Irerest rate fisk of currency risk, whether those chianges see caused by factors spedfic 1o the indnddusl firancial Instrument or its [ssuse, or factors sffecting all simiar
financial instrumesats trading in market The Comparry Is not expazed te any price stk

Capita! management

The Boards policy it 1o maintain an efficient capitsl basé 10 35 to maintan investor, creditar and market confidence and Lo sutain the lutre devslopment of its business,
The Board of Directorns monitors the retuem on capital amploved. whvch the Comparry defines as operating incame divided by totel capitel employes The Board of Directors
also manitars the kevel of dvidends to ordinary shareholders

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

~to safaguard the antity's ablity to continue as 3 Saing coricern, o that & can continue to provde returns for shareholders and benefits for cther stakeholders; and

- Lo provide an adequats return to sharebalders,
The Compary manages the capital strocture in the context of sconomk conditicns and the risk tharacteristics aof the underying sssets In orodes 10 Maintain of sdjust the
capital structire, the Compary may, for example, adjust the amaurt of dvidends paid to sharehclders, issue new shares, or sall assets to roduce debe.

There were no changes in the Company’s 3pproach 10 capital management during the year, The Company is a6t subject to eaternally imposed capital requiramens
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Fair vatue of financial instruments.
Fair value is the price that would be recersed 1o sell s astet or paid to trarafer 8 fishilty in an orderly transaction in the principal market at the measurement date under
current market condzicns regardiass of whether that price is directly chsenable o astimated using another valuation techrgus

fs at Jure 30, 2021 the net fair value of all firancial aszets and financal lisbiities are estimated to approximate thes carrymg values.

Finarclal assets which 3% tradsbe In a0 opan market are revalued at the markat prices pravading an the reparting date The fair values of all ather financial assets and
Aabiities are not dered to be signif v different from ther carrying values.

The Compaty classifies the financal Instruments measured in the satement of financal position at far valus in accordarce wieh the followling fait value measuesrmant
figrarchy.

Level 1 Cuated market prices
teyel 2 Valuation techiniquas (market observabie)
Levei 3 Valuation techniques (nen market obsenvable)
Borarieial | by categori
JUNE 30, 2021 JUNE 30, 2020

Financial asset as at amoetized cost Rupees Rupees
1ong term security deposits 513,350 B613350
Track Detns 444,545,802 255,455,022
Cash and bank balance 3,074,424.503 89,444,317

labil d
Long Term Financing - Sacured 189,157,811 164 533,255
Laasa Labilmes 7,755,356 13,855,160
Creditars, Accrued and other lablites €50,533,762 879,338,352
Director’s Loan 12 200,000 17,200,000
Current Poctian of Lorg Term Financng-Secured 122,936,714 T8A14294

Fair values of finandal assets and liablities
Carrying vatues of 2l finandel assets and liabikties reflected m these financial statements spproximate to their fair values. Fair value i= determined on the haus of abjective
evidence at each reporting dote

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties and assccisted undertaking comprise related group compacnies, d car d T and key manrag personnel. The Company in the
normal courze of business carned aut transactions with related parties. Transactions with relsted parties and astocisted comparies, ather than remuneration and benefits
1o key management personnel under the terms of their employment, are as follows:

021 2020
Aszsocates and related parties Rs, {million) Rs. {milion)
Imvestment in Azzooated Undertaking - 1%52.72)
Short Tertn Loan from directoes (500} =

Thera wers No transactions with key management persornel ather than undertaken as per tarnss of their employment as disciosed in Note 36
folowing are the related parties with wiom the Company had entered into transacticrs or have arrangemert / agreement n place.

Company Name Relatianship
Yageen Developers (Pvt | Umited Azzociate - Common Directarship

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVES, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2021
£ Directors Executives Total
Managerial remuneration 3,250,000 3,100,000 11,432 580 17844380
Honuses 300,000 300,000 870,700 1,470,200
gg‘ooa 5400&00 w 19@26&
No. of persons 1 1 7 9
2020
Directors Chief Executive Executives Total
Managerial remuneratian 3,250000 2,500,000 313213388 15,053,388
P arvd other benefi . - - -
R - I F Y XN
No. of parsons 1 1 ] 10

No meating fess was pald ta chisf grecutive and directors during the yaar .
The Chisf exacutive, directars and executive have not been provided any other perguisiies and benefits.
An exagtive i3 defined a2 an emplayes, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in s financisl year,
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OPERATING SEGMENT

Thi Company's chief decision makar revdews the Company's perfarmance on single segment accordingly the finarcial information has besn prepared an basis of single
1900rtah e segmant,

Sales to the single party represents 53% of the tota! sales of the company,

All of the Company s3las are local

All assets of the Comparry a3 at 20 June 2021 are located i Pakistan

NUMBER OF EMFLOYEES
Total Average number of employees during the year and as at the year end are az follows:-

2021 2020
Number of employess &5 at the closing date 573 420
Ayerags number of employess during the year 437 i

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUTION
The capacity and production of the Company's plant is indeterminable as it = a multi-product plant invelving varying processes of marufacture.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERICO

The Boaed of Directors of the Company have propased a final divedand for the year ended June 30, 2021 of Re 1.5 (2020: Re Nil} per share and bonus shares af 10% {2020:
ANif) at their meeting held on September 30, 2021 for approval of members at the Anrual General Meeting to be neld on Cetober 28, 2021, Theze fimancial statements da
not reflect this dhidand payatile

DATE OF AUTHORZATION FOR ISSUE
e tinancial statements have been authonzed for issue on September 30, 2021 try the bosed of directors of tha company.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Correspanding Mgures have been rearcanged, ant recassified, whers necessary, fur bettar prasantation and disdosuré

\\/% tﬁwp ‘ M

Chief Financis! Officar Director
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Citi Pharma Limited
Pattern of Shareholding as at 30-06-2021

4 1 100 12
> 101 55,000,000 134,999,988
Total: 135,000,000

S. No Name Particulars Shares %
1 Mr. Nadeem Amjad Sponsor/ Chairman 53,999,988 40.0%
2 Mr. Rizwan Ahmad Sponsor/ CEO 40,500,000 30.0%
3 Mr. Muhammad Naeem Sponsor/ Director 13,500,000 10.0%
4 Mr. Naveed Amjad Sponsor 13,500,000 10.0%
S Mr. Ateeq ur Rehman Sponsor 13,500,000 10.0%
6 Mr. Amir Zia Independent Director 3 0.00%
7 Mr. Rana Shakeel Independent Director
3 0.00%

Shaukat

8 Mrs. Saira Aslam Non-Executive 3 0.00%
Director

9 Mr. Zameer Ul Hassan Executive Director

Shah 3 0.00%

a

135,000,000 100%




Citi Pharma Limited

Pattern of Shareholding as at 1-10-2021

2,487 1 500 1111664
1,984 501 1,000 1956418
2,783 1,001 5,000 7574272
689 5,001 10,000 5434939
359 10,001 20,000 5503156
156 20,001 30,000 3997484
70 30,001 40,000 2511594

51 40,001 50,000 2387678
26 50,001 60,000 1434927

17 60,001 70,000 1110735

19 70,001 80,000 1443004

8 80,001 90,000 675000

28 90,001 100,000 2751375
27 100,001 150,000 3453668
29 150,001 500,000 8118253

7 500,001 1,000,000 4850005

4 1,000,001 2,000,000 5393807

2 2,000,001 5,000,000 7463533

1 5,000,001 10,000,000 5520500

5 10,000,001 60,000,000 134999988
8,752 207692000




Citi Pharma Limited
The Shareholding in the Company as on 1-10-2021 is as follows:

Categories Number of Number of Percentage of
Shareholders shares held holding
Directors and their spouses and minor childeren / 108,000,994 52.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related
parties -
NIT and ICP -
Banks, DFIs and NBFls -
. 1
Insurance Companies 84,000 0.04
30
Modarbas and Mutual Funds 7,687,105 3.70
General Public 8669 76,682,590 36.92
. 45
Investment companies 15,237,311 7.34
Joint Stock Companies -
Others
8752

207,692,000 100




Citi Pharma Limited
Information of shareholding as current as required under Code of Corporate Governance is as follows

Number of shares Percentage

Category Shareholder's category held %
1 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - 0.00%
- 0.00%

2 Mutual Funds

CDC - TRUSTEE NBP STOCK FUND 2,686,533 1.29%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1,005,776 0.48%
MODARABA AL-MALI 1,000,000 0.48%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 578,833 0.28%
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 532,500 0.26%
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND EQUITY ACCOUNT 325,583 0.16%
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 260,000 0.13%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP BALANCED FUND 203,725 0.10%
CDC - TRUSTEE JS ISLAMIC FUND 188,000 0.09%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP SARMAYA IZAFA FUND 174,368 0.08%
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA PENSION FUND EQUITY SUB-FUND ACCOUNT 164,125 0.08%
CDC - TRUSTEE JS PENSION SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY ACCOUNT 87,000 0.04%
TRUSTEE-THE KOT ADDU POWER CO. LTD. EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 77,769 0.04%
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND 68,775 0.03%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 61,776 0.03%
CDC - TRUSTEE JS ISLAMIC PENSION SAVINGS FUND-EQUITY ACCOUNT 53,000 0.03%
THAL LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 50,308 0.02%
BYCO PETROLEUM PAKISTAN LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 36,380 0.02%
ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED NON-MPT EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 28,639 0.01%




TRUSTEE-THE KOT ADDU POWER CO. LTD. EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 21,670 0.01%
AGRIAUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 18,000 0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 14,834 0.01%
THE CRESCENT TEXTILE MILLS LTD EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 14,322 0.01%
B.R.R. GUARDIAN MODARABA 14,000 0.01%
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 10,000 0.00%
THAL LIMITED EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT BENEFIT FUND 5,271 0.00%
TRUSTEE-FIRST DAWOOD INV. BANK LTD. & OTHER EMPOLYEES P. FUND 2,500 0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND 2,020 0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND 929 0.00%
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 469 0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
7,687,105 3.70%

Directors and their spouses and children
NADEEM AMJAD 53,999,988 26.00%
RIZWAN AHMAD 40,500,000 19.50%
MUHAMMAD NAEEM 13,500,000 6.50%
ABDUL JALEEL SHAIKH 500 0.00%
SAIRA ASLAM 3 0.00%
ZAMEER UL HASAN SHAH 3 0.00%
Ms. Farzin Khan 500 0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
108,000,994 52.00%

Executives - 00.00%




Muhammad Riaz 6,068 0.00%
Asif Igbal 3,526 0.00%
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - 00.00%
Banks DFIs and NBFls, Insurance Companies, Modarabas and Pension
Funds 91,994,307 44.29%
Others 0.00%
207,692,000 100.00%
Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights
NADEEM AMJAD 53,999,988 26.00%
RIZWAN AHMAD 40,500,000 19.50%
ATEEQ UR REHMAN 13,500,000 6.50%
NAVEED AMJAD 13,500,000 6.50%
MUHAMMAD NAEEM 13,500,000 6.50%
65.00%

134,999,988




Notice

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENRAL MEETING

is hereby given to the members that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held

on October 28, 2021, Thursday, at 3:00 PM at 588- Q Block, M.A Johar Town, Lahore to transact the

following businesses:

Ordinary Bushiness

1.

To confirm the minutes of last Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on December 24, 2020.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2021 together with Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

To consider and approve final cash dividend @ 15% (Rs. 1.5 per share) and Bonus @ 10% (10 shares for
every 100 shares held) for the year ended June 30, 2021 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

To appoint statutory auditors Company for the year ending June 30, 2022 and fix their remuneration.
The retiring Auditors M/s Aslam Malik & Co. Chartered Accountant, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment at a fee to be mutually agreed and reimbursements of out-of-pocket
expenses at actuals.

Special Business

5.

6.

To approve transmission of annual reports including annual audited financial statement, auditor’s
report, chairman’s review, Director’s report and notice of annual general meeting to the Company’s
shareholders electronically through Email/CD/DVD/USB at their registered emails or mailing addresses
instead of transmitting the annual reports including annual audited accounts in printed form as allowed
under Section 223(6) of the companies Act, 2017.

RESOLVED THAT Company be and is hereby allowed to transmit its annual reports including annual
audited financial statements, auditor’s report, Chairman’s review, Director’s report and notice of annual
general meeting to Company’s shareholders electronically through Email/CD/DVD/USB at their
registered emails or mailing addresses, as allowed under Section 223(6) of the companies Act, 2017
instead of transmitting the annual reports including annual audited accounts in printed form.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By the Order of the Board

Muhammad Riaz
Company Secretary
October 7, 2021

Lahore




Notes
1. Participation in the AGM Proceeds via video conferencing facility:
Due to current COVID-19 situation and for the well-being of the stakeholders the AGM proceedings can

also be attended via video conferencing facility only.

Shareholders interested to participate in the meeting are requested to email following information with
subject “registration for CITI PHARMA LIMITED AGM” along with valid copy of both sides of
computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at corporate@citipharma.com.pk. Video link and login

credentials will be share with only those members whose email containing all the required particulars,
are received a t least 48 hours before the time of AGM.

Registration to Attend Annual General Meeting through Videos Conferencing Facility
1. Folio No./ CDC investors A/c No./Sub-A/c No.
Name of Shareholder (s) :

Cell phone Numbers

Email Address

No. of shares held at the date of Book
Closure to establish the right to attend AGM

vk wN

Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM

at the email address corporate@citipharma.com.pk.

Bool Closure

2. The share transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed form October 21, 2021 to October 28,
2021 (both days inclusive) to establish the right to attend annual general meeting and to receive the
dividend and Bonus declared.

3. A Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint
another members as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf.

4. An instrument appointing proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is singed
or a notarized certified copy of the power or authority must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Form of Proxy is enclosed.

5. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular
1 dated 26 January 2000 issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

a. For Attending AGM

l. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose securities and their
registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall produce proof of his/her identity by
showing original computerized National Identity Card (CINC) at the time of attending meeting.

1. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of
meeting.



mailto:corporate@citipharma.com.pk
mailto:corporate@citipharma.com.pk

b. For Appointing Proxy

I In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration details are
uploaded as per the CDC regulations shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

Il Attested copies of CNIC of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy
form. The proxy shall produce this original CNIC at the time of the meeting.

Electronic Voting:

I Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143
-145 of the Companies Act, 2017 and application clauses of the Companies Postal Ballot Regulations,
2018

. Filer and Non-Filer Status

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2021 in Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 prescribed the following rates for withholding tax against dividend
payments by the companies:

a. Forfilers of income tax returns -15%
b. For non-filer of income tax return 30%

Members whose name are not entered into the Active Taxpayer List (ATL) provided on the website of
FBR, despite the fact that they are filer, are advised to make sure that their name are entered into
ATL to avoid higher to deductions against any future dividend.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2021.

ITEM 4 OF THE AGENDA

To proceed towards paperless environment and to fulfill the responsibility towards environment, Company had
already passed resolution with the consent of its shareholder in Extraordinary General Meeting held on
December 24, 2020 and had already granted approval to transmit annual reports in the form of soft copies in
CD/DVD/USB instead of transmitting the annual audited accounts in printed copy as per the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s SRO No.470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016. Whereas, in addition to the above
approval, the Section 223 (6) of the Companies Act, 2017 allows every listed company to send its audited
financial statements together with the auditors’ report, chairman review and directors’ report to every member
of the company and every person who is entitled to receive notice of general meeting, either by post or
electronically at least twenty-one days before the date of meeting at which it is to be laid before the members
of the company, and shall keep a copy at the registered office of the company for the inspection of the members.
Now Company sought approval of shareholders to issue & dispatch its annual reports including annual audited
financial statements, Auditor’s report, Chairman’s review, Director’s report and notice of annual general
meeting through Email/CD/DVD/USB at their registered emails or mailing addresses instead of transmitting the
annual reports including annual audited accounts in printed form as allowed under Section 223(6) of the
Companies Act, 2017. However, an option of hard copy of the same information is offered to any interested

shareholder.




FOLIO NUMBER

FORM OF PROXY

A1 of

being a member of Citi Pharma Limited

hereby appoint Mr..... e e another member of the company as
my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, October 28, 2021, at 03:00 PM at 588-Q

Block, M.A Johar Town, Lahore and any adjournment thereof.

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER

Note

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend and vote his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly authorized in
writing. If a member is a corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.
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